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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 37
th

 Annual General Meeting of the Members of Continental Seeds and 

Chemical Limited will be held on Thursday, 30
th

 September, 2021 at 04:00 P.M. at fourth floor, C-

67, DDA Sheds Okhla, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020 to transact the following business: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

Item No. 1 – Adoption of Audited Financial Statements  

 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.  

 

Item No. 2 – Re-appointment of a Director  

 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pravin Rastogi (DIN: 01414608), who retires by rotation at this Annual 

General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Pravin 

Rastogi (DIN: 01414608), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for 

re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 

By order of the Board 

For Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited 

 

SD/-               

Praveen Rastogi 

Chairman and Managing Director  
DIN: 01414608   

Address: - M-73 B, 1st Floor, Malviya Nagar, 

New Delhi 110017 

 

Date: 02/09/2021 

Place: New Delhi 

 

NOTES: 

1. A  Member of the company entitled to attend  and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint 

a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself  and the  proxy  need  not  be a member of 

the company. A blank form of the proxy is enclosed. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, 

be deposited at the registered office of the company duly completed not later than forty eight hours before 

the commencement of the meeting. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty 

and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying 

voting rights. a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying 

voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 

person or shareholder. 
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2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested 

to send to the company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend 

and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 24th 

September, 2021 to Thursday, 30th September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

 

4. Members are requested: 

i) to kindly notify the change of address, if any, to the Company/ their Depository Participant. 

ii) to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of the Annual Report in the Meeting. 

iii)   to deposit the duly completed attendance slip at the Meeting. 

5. Members may use the facility of Nomination. A Nomination Form will be supplied to them on request. 

 

6. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statement are open for inspection by the 

members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays during business 

hours upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 

170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 

 

8. The Register of Contracts or Arrangement in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 

of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 

 

9. The copies of the Annual Reports will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Members 

are requested to bring their copies to the meeting.  The Annual Report of the Company is also available 

on the Company’s website www.continentalseeds.co.in 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Members, 

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICAL LIMITED 

 
 
The Directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report and Audited Statement of 
Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Financial results of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are summarized below. 

 

(In Rs) 

PARTICULARS 2020-21 2019-20 

Sales and Services 95,39,79,928 87,91,50,623 

Other Income 30,61,748 21,63,765 

Total Revenue 

 
95,70,41,675 88,13,14,388 

Total Expenditure 

 
95,16,79,760 8,73,659,888 

Profit before Tax 48,68,146 86,06,688 

Less: Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 
MAT credit utilized 

Net current tax 

Earlier year Tax adjustment 
Deferred Tax Assets 

 

14,02,642 

- 

- 
- 

 

2,83,798 

 
 

21,63,385 

- 

- 
- 

 

38,779.46 
 

Profit/Loss After Tax 37,49,302 64,82,082 

Add: Balance B/F from Previous year 1,62,58,665 2,38,67,813 

Less: Issue of Bonus shares - 1,40,91,230 

Other adjustments (2,42,510) - 

Balance Profit/(Loss) C/F to the next year 1,97,65,456 1,62,58,665 

 

2. DIVIDEND 

 

The Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend on Equity Share Capital for the year under review 

with a view to conserve resources and to plough back the profits for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 

2021  and to strengthen the net working capital. 
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3. SHARE CAPITAL   

During the financial year 2020-2021 our company has no change in the capital structure of the company.

  

4. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS (MDA) 

 

Financial Review 

The operating income during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 stood at Rs.48,68,146/- as against 

the total operating income of Rs. 86,06,688/- in the previous financial year ended 31st March, 2020. During 

the Year the Company has earned a net profit of 37,49,302/- as compared to the net profit of Rs. 64,82,082/- 

in the previous year.  

Industry Overview for the Company 

 

Agriculture 

 

Agriculture is the primary source of livelihood for about 58% of India’s population. Gross Value Added by 

agriculture, forestry, and fishing was estimated at Rs. 19.48 lakh crore (US$ 276.37 billion) in FY20. Share 

of agriculture and allied sectors in gross value added (GVA) of India at current prices stood at 17.8% in 

FY20. Consumer spending in India will return to growth in 2021 post the pandemic-led contraction, 

expanding by as much as 6.6%. 

Principal agricultural commodities export for April 2020 - January 2021 was US$ 32.12 billion. 

The Economic Survey of India 2020-21 report stated that in FY20, the total food grain production in the 

country was recorded at 296.65 million tonnes—up by 11.44 million tonnes compared with 285.21 million 

tonnes in FY19. The government has set a target to buy 42.74 million tonnes from the central pool in FY21; 

this is 10% more than the quantity purchased in FY20. For FY22, the government has set a record target 

for farmers to raise food grain production by 2% with 307.31 million tonnes of food grains. In FY21, 

production was recorded at 303.34 million tonnes against a target of 301 million tonnes. 

Production of horticulture crops in India was estimated at a record 326.6 million metric tonnes (MMT) in 

FY20 as per third advance estimates, an increase of 5.81 million metric tonnes over FY20. Area under 

horticulture is projected to rise by 2.7% in FY21. 

Chemical 

 

Covering more than 80,000 commercial products, India’s chemical industry is extremely diversified and 

can be broadly classified into bulk chemicals, specialty chemicals, agrochemicals, petrochemicals, 

polymers and fertilisers. 

Globally, India is the fourth-largest producer of agrochemicals after the United States, Japan and China. 

India accounts for ~16% of the world production of dyestuffs and dye intermediates. The Indian colorants 

industry has emerged as a key player with a global market share of 15%. The country’s chemicals industry 

is de-licensed, except for a few hazardous chemicals. India holds a strong position in exports and imports 

of chemicals at a global level and ranks 14th in exports and 8th in imports at global level (excluding 

pharmaceuticals). 
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The domestic chemicals sector's small and medium enterprises are expected to showcase 18-23% revenue 

growth in FY22, owing to an improvement in domestic demand and higher realisation due to high prices 

of chemicals. 

India’s proximity to the Middle East, the world’s source of petrochemicals feedstock, enables it to benefit 

on economies of scale. 

The Indian chemicals industry stood at US$ 178 billion in 2019 and is expected to reach US$ 304 billion 

by 2025 registering a CAGR of 9.3%. The demand for chemicals is expected to expand by 9% per annum 

by 2025. The chemical industry is expected to contribute US$ 300 billion to India’s GDP by 2025. 

An investment of Rs. 8 lakh crore (US$ 107.38 billion) is estimated in the Indian chemicals and 

petrochemicals sector by 2025. 

In April 2021, production of key chemicals was 850,622 MT and petrochemicals was 1,868,939 MT. 

Despite the current pandemic situation, the Indian chemical industry has numerous opportunities 

considering the supply chain disruption in China and trade conflict among the US, Europe and China. Anti-

pollution measures in China will also create opportunities for the Indian chemical industry in specific 

segments. 

Additional support, in terms of fiscal incentives, such as tax breaks and special incentives through PCPIRs 

or SEZs to encourage downstream units will enhance production and development of the industry. The 

dedicated integrated manufacturing hubs under Petroleum, Chemicals and Petrochemicals Investment 

Regions (PCPIR) policy aim to attract an investment of Rs. 20 lakh crore (US$ 276.46 billion) by 2035. 

To bring about structural changes in the working of the domestic chemical industry, future investments 

should not only focus on transportation of fuels such as petrol and diesel, but also on crude-to-chemicals 

complexes or refineries set up to cater to the production of chemicals.     

5. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE WITHIN STATE: 

 
During the year there was a change in the Registered Office of the Company within the same state. 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES 

 
The Company has no Subsidiaries, Joint Venture or Associates. 

7. DEPOSITS 
 

The Company is in violation of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies 

(Acceptances of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as it has taken advances from customers amounting to Rs. 60.50 

lacs having outstanding balances of more than 365 days. In terms of Rule 2(1) (xii)(a) such advances are 

liable to be treated as deposits reads together with section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 hence the 

Company is in violation of the same. 

During the year the Company Purchased Land amounting to Rs.47,25,100/- which amount was shown paid 

through cheques in sales deed. However, out of which cheques of Rs. 35.00 lacs were not presented by the 

previous owner. 
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8. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Sachin Rastogi Director of the Company, Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma 

& Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Directors of the Company. All the recommendations made by the 

Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. The Committee duly met five times during the year and was 

attended by all the Committee Members. The details of the Audit Committee have been outlined in the 

Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report. 

9. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  
 

The Nomination and remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Sachin Rastogi Director of the Company, Mr. 

Gopal Krishan Sharma & Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Directors of the Company. The Committee 

duly met two times during the year and was attended by all the Committee Members. The salient features 

covered in the Remuneration Policy have been outlined in the Corporate Governance Report which forms 

part of this Report.  

10. DIRECTOR’S & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Praveen Rastogi, Chairman and Managing 

Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment.  

Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

There were changes in composition of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel during the financial year 

2020-2021 which are as follows:  

Sn. No. Particulars Date of appointment Designation 

1 Dr. Vikash Chand Tyagi 20/09/2020 Independent Director 

2 Mrs. Nidhi Gupta 20/09/2020 Executive & Women Director 

3 Mrs. Jai Shree Rastogi  20/09/2020 Executive & Women Director 

 

11. DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) AND RE-APPOINTMENT, IF ANY 
 

The Company has received necessary declarations from Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma and Mr. Prashant 

Rastogi, Independent Directors of the Company, under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they 

meet the criteria of Independence laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 

25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

12. EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE  

 

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued there under and LODR, the 

Board of Director on recommendation of Nominations & Remuneration Committee have evaluated the 

effectiveness of the Board/Director(s) for financial year 2020-21. 
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13. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the 

Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 requiring the names of 

top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee, who if employed 

throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not 

less than one crore and Twenty lakh rupees is set out in Annexure I to this Report and is available on the 

website of the Company. 

The details about the employees are marked as Annexure-I. 

 

14. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD  

 

The board met 10 times during the year. The Board meetings details of the Company are set out in the 

Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report. The Maximum interval between any two 

meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.  

15. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The company complies with all the applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. 

 

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm 

that: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the 

applicable accounting standards and Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, have been followed 

and there are no material departures from the same; 

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2021; 

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 

(e) the Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and  

(f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
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17. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT  
 

Auditor 

M/s PMAS & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration No. 024726N, is 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of 33 rd Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company i.e from the 

Financial year 01/04/2017 to 31/03/2022 who have given their eligibility certificates u/s 141 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The committee took note that the Companies Act, 2013 has exempted the 

requirements of ratification of appointment of auditors on an annual basis at the AGM.  

Internal Auditor 

 

Re-appointment of M/s AMGK & Associates, Chartered Accountant, as an Internal Auditors of the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021, to review various operations of the company.  

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

 

The details of the related party transactions as required under Accounting Standard – 18 are set out in Note 

2.10 to the financial statements forming part of this Annual Report. The particulars of every contract or 

arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 

of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain on arm length transactions under third proviso thereto are 

annexed in form AOC-2 under Annexure II. The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and 

dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 

website. 

19. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules made there under, the 

Company has appointed M/s Laur & Associate, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 

the Company. The Company has annexed to this Board Report as Annexure III, a Secretarial Audit Report 

given by the Secretarial Auditor 

 

20. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS  

 

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

The Company is in violation of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as it has provided corporate 

guarantee along with property to Canara Bank on behalf of Natural Herbal & Seeds to the tune of Rs.10.60 

Crore to obtain the credit facilities by the sister concern. In addition to the guarantee, the company has 

provided two properties registered in its name as collateral security to the Canara bank on behalf of Natural 

Herbal & Seeds. 

Details of loan and advances, guarantee and investments have been given in the Note no. 13 & 16 of balance 

sheet note to accounts. 

 

21. VIGIL MECHANISM 
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The Board of Directors of the Company have formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance 

with the provisions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company, through this policy envisages to encourage the 

Directors and Employees of the Company to report to the appropriate authorities any unethical behaviour, 

improper, illegal or questionable acts, deeds, actual or suspected frauds or violation of the Company’s Code 

of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle 

blower policy may be accessed on the Company’s website. 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

Risk Management policy is formulated in compliance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI (listing obligation 

and disclosure requirement) regulation 2015 and section 134 (3) (n) of the companies act 2013, which 

requires the company to lay down procedure for risk assessment and risk minimization. The board of 

directors, Audit committee and the senior management of the company should periodically review the 

policy and monitor its implementation to ensure the optimization of business performance, to promote the 

confidence amongst stake holders in the process, plan and meet strategic objectives and evaluate, tackle 

and resolve various risks associated with the company. The business of the company is exposed to various 

risks, arising out of internal and external factors i.e. industry, competition, input, geography, financial, 

regulatory, other operational, information technology related other risks. 

23. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo as stipulated under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 is as under: 

Part A and Part B relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to the 

Company as your Company is not a manufacturing company. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:  

                                                                                                                                   (in Rs.) 

Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo 2020-21 2019-20 

FOB Value of Exports Nil Nil 

CIF Value of Imports Nil Nil 

Expenditure in foreign currency Nil Nil 

 

24. SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

 

There are no significant/material orders passed by any of the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting 

the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future. 

25. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th December, 2013. 

Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into 

complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee.  
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Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has set 

up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not received any complaint 

of harassment. 

 

26. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES  

 

Trading in the Equity Shares of the Company is only permitted in the dematerialized form as per the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular dated May 29, 2000. 

The Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories viz. National Security Depository 

Ltd. (NSDL) as well as Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) to facilitate the demat trading. As 

on 31st March, 2021, 100% of the Company’s Share Capital is in dematerialized form. 

The Company’s shares are regularly traded on Emerge-the SME Growth Platform of National Stock 

Exchange at Delhi. 

 

27. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the LODR, the Corporate Governance report together with a certificate issued 

from Laur & Associates, Company Secretaries on its compliance is made part of the Annual Report. 

28. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statement in the management’s discussions and analysis describing the Company’s projections, estimates, 

expectations or predictions may be ‘forward looking statements’  within the  meaning  of  applicable  

securities  laws  and  regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 

Important factors that would make a difference to the Company’s operations include demand-supply 

conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regimes and economic developments within the country 

and abroad and such other factors. 

29. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

The Directors of the Company are grateful to all the stakeholders including the customers, bankers, 

suppliers and employees of the Company for their co-operation and assistance.  

 

By order of the Board 

For Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited 

 

 

Sd/-                                                         Sd/-  

PRAVEEN RASTOGI      SACHIN  RASTOGI 

Chairman and  Managing Director    Director 

DIN: 01414608       DIN: 05134858 

Address: M-73 B, 1st Floor,                       Address: H. No. 760 KOT SHARKI D  

Malviya Nagar, New Delhi 110017            Ashink Sambhal UP 244302  

                                                                    

 

Date: 02/09/2021 

Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees of Your Company 

for the Financial Year 2020-2021: 

Name of the Director Total 

Remuneration 

Ratio of Remuneration of Director to the 

Median Employee 

Mr. Praveen Rastogi 1500000 25:4 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi  324000 27:20 

 

Notes: 

Median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is Rs 10,000/- for the financial year 2020-21. 

Details of percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director and CFO and Company 

Secretary in the Financial Year 2020-2021 

Name  Remuneration Increase % 

2020-21 2019-20 

Mr. Praveen Rastogi 125000  125000  Nil 

Mrs. Nidhi Gupta Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi 27000 25000             8% 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Nil Nil Nil 

Mrs. Utpal Tandon 28000  28000 Nil 

Mrs. Megha Jain 15000 15000 Nil 

 

Notes:  

During the year, your Company not pay the sitting fees of for attending the board and committee meeting. 

Therefore there is no such remuneration for the non-executive independent director. 

The remuneration to Directors is within the overall limits approved by the shareholders. 

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the financial year 2020-2021  

 2020-2021 2019-20 Increase % 

Median remuneration of all the employees per 

annum 

20000 10000 100% 

 

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31
st
, 2021 

Executive/Manager 10 

Other employees 24 
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A. Explanation on the relationship between average no increase in remuneration and Company 

performance: 

There is an increase in average remuneration of all employees in the financial year 2020-21 and there have 

been additional employees in the company to cater to growing business needs. 

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
Company:  

There has been no increase in the salary of Mr. Praveen Rastogi. However the salary of Mr. Sachin Rastogi 

has been increased during the Financial Year 2020-21.     

Details of share price and market capitalization etc: Applicable 

B. Comparison of average percentage increase in salary of employee other than the key managerial 

personnel and the percentage increase in the key managerial remuneration:  

 

 2020-21 2019-20 Increase (%) 

Average salary of all employees (other than key 

managerial personnel) 

19,065 1,33,412 -85% 

Salary of Whole Time Director  NIL NIL NIL 

Salary of Company Secretary NIL NIL NIL  

 
A. Key parameters for the variable component of remuneration No variable compensation is paid by the 

Company to its Directors. 

B. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the Employees who are not Directors 
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: Not Applicable 

C. Affirmation: It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year under review is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
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                                          ANNEXURE (II) TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length : NIL 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 

a) Particulars    

b) Name (s) of the 

related party & 

nature of relationship 

Shree Balaji Enterprises 

(Entity where wife of     

director is a Gurantor) 

Praveen Aroma 

Pvt. Ltd. 

(Entity where 

KMP have 
significant 

influence) 

Natural Herbal 

(Entity where KMP have 

significant influence) 

c) Nature
 

of 

contracts/arrangemen

ts/transaction 

Purchase Sale Purchase Purchase Rent 
Received 

d) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangeme

nts/transaction 

Ongoing basis Ongoing 
basis 

Ongoing basis Ongoing  
Basis 

Ongoing 
basis 

e) Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transaction including 

the value, if any 

5,37,00,047 33,06,34,774    8,46,78,840 17,59,20,41
4 

1,20,000 

f) Date of approval by 
the Board 

- - - 

g) Amount paid as 

advances, if any 

- - - 
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ANNEXURE (III) TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31
ST

 MARCH, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To,  

The Members,                              

Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited  

(CIN- L01111DL1983PLC015969) 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices of Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited (hereinafter called the 

company)bearing CIN No.: L01111DL1983PLC015969. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company 

has, during the audit period covering the year ended on 31
st
 March 2021 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31
st
 March, 2021.  

According to the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings;  

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992;  

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009  

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999.  
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008. 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.  

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation 2015; 

        I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  

(b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s); 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:  

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

i. The Company is in violation of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as it has provided corporate 

guarantee along with property to Canara Bank on behalf of Natural Herbal & Seeds to the tune of 

Rs.10.60 Crore to obtain the credit facilities by the sister concern. 

In addition to the guarantee, the company has provided two properties registered in its name as 

collateral security to the Canara bank on behalf of Natural Herbal & Seeds 

ii. The Company is in violation of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 

Companies (Acceptances of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as it has taken advances from customers 

amounting to Rs. 60.50 lacs having outstanding balances of more than 365 days. In terms of Rule 

2(1) (xii)(a) such advances are liable to be treated as deposits reads together with section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 hence the Company is in violation of the same. 

During the year the Company Purchased Land amounting to Rs.47,25,100/- which amount was 

shown paid through cheques in sales deed. However, out of which cheques of Rs. 35.00 lacs were 

not presented by the previous owner. 

We further report that subject to our observations: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 



 

18 
 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously. As per the 

records available in the said minutes there were no dissenting views expressed by any director in the 

meetings.  

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as 

part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period the Company has no reportable specific events, actions 

having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws, regulations, guidelines, 

standards, etc. referred to above. 

For Laur and Associates  

(Registration No. S2017DE454000) 

 

Sd/- 

 

Name:  Manju Laur 

FCS-9254, C.P No.: 12247 

UDIN number: F009254C000865441 

 
Place: Noida 

Date: 2nd  September, 2021 
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I. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year (As on 1
st
 April, 2020) 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year (As on 31
st
 March, 2021) 

% 

Chang

e 

during 

the 

year# 

 Demat Phys

ical 

Total % of 

Total 

Share

s# 

Demat Phys

ical 

Total % of 

Total 

Share

s# 

 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 

HUF 

7229472 0 7229472 72.27 7229472 0 7229472 72.27  

b) Central 

Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State 

Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 

Corp 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 

(A)(1):- 

7229472 - 7229472 72.27 7229472 0 7229472 7272  

2) Foreign          

g) NRIs-

Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

h) Other-

Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Bodies 

Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

j) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

k) Any 

Other…. 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 

(A)(2):- 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 

Promoter 

Shareholding 

(A)=(A)(1)+ 

(A)(2) 

7229472 0 7229472 72.27 7229472 0 7229472 72.27  
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B. Public 

Shareholdin

g 

         

1) Institutions          

a) Mutual 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI -    - - - - - 

c) Central 

Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) State 

Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture 

Capital 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 

Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h) Foreign 

Venture 

Capital 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 

(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 

(B)(1) 

-         

a) Non 

Institutions 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Bodies 

Corp. 

(i) Indian 

(ii) 

Overseas 

- - - - - 

- - - - 

c) Individuals 

(i) 
Individual 

shareholder

s holding 
nominal 

share 

capital 
upto Rs. 

2lakh 

1932099 - - 19.32 1739923 - - 17.39 -1.93 
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(ii) 

Individual 

shareholder
s holding 

nominal 

share 
capital in 

excess of 

Rs 2 lakh 

533327 - - 5.33 743282 - - 7.43 2.1 

d) Others 

(Specify) 

307910 - - 3.08 

 

290131 - - 2.90 0.18 

(c-i) Non 

Residents 
- - - - - - - -  

(c-ii) Clearing 

Members 
- - - - - - - -  

(c-iii) HUF - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total 

(B)(2) 
2773336 - - 27.73 2773336 - - 27.73 - 

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ 

(B)(2) 

2773336 - - 27.73 2773336 - - 27.73 - 

C. Shares held 

by Custodian 

for GDRs & 

ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 
10002808 - - 100 10002808 - - 100  

 

ii) Shareholding of Promoters:- 

S. 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year (As on 1
st
 April, 

2020) 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year (As on 31
st
 

March, 2021) 

 

  No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

compa 

ny# 

% of 

Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbe 

red to 

total 

shares# 

No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

compa 

ny# 

% of 

Shares 

Pledged 

/ 

encumbe 

red to 

total 

shares# 

% 

change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year# 

1 Sachin 
Rastogi 

18083 0.18 - 18083 0.18 - - 

2 Nishi Agarwal 291666 2.92 - 291666  2.92       - - 

3 Vivek Kumar 

Varshney 
276666 2.77 - 276666 2.77 - - 

4 Nidhi Gupta 350000 3.50 - 350000        3.50 - - 

5 Anju Devi 291666 2.92 - 291666        2.92 -  
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6 Purnima 

Varshney 
350000 3.50 - 350000        3.50 - - 

7 Pravin Rastogi 2775791 27.75 - 2775791        27.75 - - 

8 Jaishree 
Rastogi 

2875600 28.75 - 2875600        28.75 - - 

# rounded off to nearest two decimals. 

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 

 Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year 

Changes during the 

year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the year 

Shareholding 

at the end of 

the year 

  No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company# 

Date of 

change in 

shareholding 

* 

Changes 

during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company# 

 

1 Sachin 

Rastogi 
18083 0.18 - 18083 0.18 - - 

2 Nishi 
Agarwal 

291666 2.92 - 291666 2.92 - - 

3 Vivek 

Kumar 
Varshney 

276666 2.77 - 276666 2.77 - - 

4 Nidhi Gupta 350000 3.50 - 350000 3.50 - - 

5 Anju Devi 291666 2.92 - 291666 2.92 - - 

6 Purnima 
Varshney 

350000 3.50 - 350000 3.50 - - 

7 Pravin 

Rastogi 
2775791 27.75 - 2775791 27.75 - - 

8 Jaishree 
Rastogi 

2875600 28.75 - 2875600 28.75 - - 

         

# rounded off to nearest two decimals. 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 

GDRs and ADRs): NIL 

 

` Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year (as on 

01.04.2019) 

No of 

shares 

before 

change 

Change in 

holding(+) 

(-) 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year (as on 

31.03.2020) 

 

Sr.no Shareholder 

Name 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

Shares 

 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

 Reason 

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL  NIL 

# rounded off to nearest two decimals. 

 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

S. 

No. 

 Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year 

Changes during the 

year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the year 

Shareholding 

at the end of 

the year 
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 Name of 

the 

Directors 

and KMP  

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company# 

Date of 

change in 

shareholding 

Changes 

during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company# 

 

1. Praveen 

Rastogi 
2775791 

27.75 - - 
2775791 

27.75 
2775791 

2. Jaishree 

Rastogi 
2875600 

28.75 - - 
2875600 

28.75 
2875600 

3. Sachin 

Rastogi 
18083 

0.18 - - 
18083 

0.18 
18083 

4. Prashant 

Rastogi 

- - - - - - - 

5. Gopal 
Krishan 

Sharma 

- - - - - - - 

6. Utpal 
Tandon 

- - - - - - - 

7 Megha 

Jain 

- - - - - - - 

# rounded off to nearest two decimals. 

 

INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 

  

Secured 

Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits 

Total Indebtednes

s 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 

the financial year 
   

 

   

i) Principal Amount   3,16,79,941     13,00,000   0.00 3,29,79,941.00 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 

    3,16,79,941 

   

  13,00,000   0.00   3,29,79,941.00 

Change in Indebtedness during 

the financial year 
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* Addition 
1,79,22,221 

20,30,800 -- 
1,99,53,021 

* Reduction   -  

Net Change 1,79,22,221 20,30,800 0.00  1,99,53,021 

Indebtedness at the end of the 

financial year 
  

      

i) Principal Amount 4,96,02,162 33,30,800 0.00 5,29,32,962.00 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 4,96,02,162 33,30,800 0.00 5,29,32,962.00 
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V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

i. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

(Amount in Rupees) 

S

N

. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total  

Amount 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

Gross salary Praveen Rastogi 

(Chairman and Managing 

Director) 

Sachin Rastogi (Non Executive 

& Non Independent Director) 

 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax Act, 1961 

15,00,000 3,24,000 18,00,000 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

Nil Nil  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) Income- 

tax Act, 1961 

Nil Nil  

2 Stock Option Nil Nil  

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil  

4 Commission 

- as % of    profit 

- others, specify… 

  

Nil Nil  

5 Others, please specify 

  

  

Nil Nil  

  Total (A) 

  

  

15,00,000 3,24,000 18,00,000 

  Ceiling as per the Act as per 

Schedule V 
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Remuneration to other directors: 

S. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount 

1 Independent Directors      

Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

Nil Nil Nil   

Commission Nil Nil Nil   

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil   

Total (1) Nil Nil Nil   

2 Other Non-Executive Directors N.A. N.A. N.A.   

Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

Nil Nil Nil 

  

Commission Nil Nil Nil   

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil   

  Total (2) Nil Nil Nil   

  Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil   

  

Total Managerial 

Remuneration 

Nil Nil Nil 

  

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act        
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iii) Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 

 

S. 

No. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

  CEO  Company 

Secretary 

 

CFO 

Utpal 

Tandon 

Total 

1.  Gross salary 

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in 

section17(1)of the Income-tax 

Act,1961 

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

NIL 1,80,000 3,36,000 NIL 

2.  Stock Option Nil Nil Nil  

3.  Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil  

4.  Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-others, specify… 

Nil Nil Nil  

5.  Others, please specify     

6.  Total Nil 
1,80,000 3,36,000 
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VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

      

Type Sectio

n of 

the 

Comp

anies 

Act 

Brief 

Descriptio

n 

Details of 

Penalty/Punishment/Compoundi

ng fees imposed 

Authority 

(RD/NCLT/Cour

t) 

Appeal

l made 

if any 

(give 

details

) 

A.  COMPANY 

Penalty           

Punishment           

Compounding           

B. DIRECTORS 

            

Penalty           

Punishment           

Compounding           

            

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

           

Penalty           

Punishment           

Compounding           
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1. Corporate Governance from Continental seeds & chemical Limited  

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct and improves public 

understanding of the structure, activities and policies of the organization. 

Your Company believes that the implementation of good corporate practices bring positive strength 

among all the stakeholders of the Company, which is key to success for any corporate. 

 

2. Board of Directors 

2.1  Board Diversity and Structure  

The Board composition is in compliance with the Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations 2015 as well 

as the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31st March, 2021, the Company had six Directors on the Board. 

Presently more than fifty percent of the Board comprises of Non-Executive Directors. Out of the 6 (five) 

Directors, 1 (One) is Non-Executive- Non Independent Director, 1 (One) is Executive & Women 

Director, 3 (three) are Non-Executive -Independent Director and 1 (one) Managing Director. 

The members on the Board possesses adequate experience, expertise and skills necessary for managing 

the affairs of the Company in the most effective and efficient manner.  

2.2  Independent Directors 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma, Mr. Prashant Rastogi and Mr. Vikash Chand Tyagi Independent Director 

of the Company continue to be the Independent Directors of the Company. The Independent Directors 
have submitted the declaration that they meet the criteria of Independence as per the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. None of the 

Independent Directors is holding directorship in more than 7 listed Companies. The Company has also 
issued the formal letter of appointments to all the Independent Directors in the manner provided under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and under the LODR Regulations.  

2.3  Familiarisation Programme 

In terms of Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 entered with the stock exchanges, mandates the Company to familiarize the Independent Directors 

with the Company, their roles, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 

Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. through various programmes. 

The Company conduct programmes/ presentations periodically to familiarize the Independent Directors 

with the strategy, business and operations of the Company.  

The above programme also includes the familiarization on statutory compliances as a Board member 

including their roles, rights and responsibilities. The Company also circulates news and articles related to 

the industry from time to time and provide specific regulatory updates.  

The details of such Familiarization programme for Independent Directors in terms of Regulation 25(7) of 

the Listing Regulations, 2015 are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed on the 

website of the company www.continentalseeds.co.in. 

2.4 Board Meetings 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the Board met 10 (Ten) times i.e.  

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/
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Sr. 

No. 
Date of Board Meeting Directors Present Designation 

1. 04th May, 2020 

Mr. Praveen Rastogi 
Managing Director 

Mrs. Jaishree Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 
 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

2 01st June, 2020 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Jaishree Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

3. 29th July, 2020 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Jaishree Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

4. 24th August, 2020 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Jaishree Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 
Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi 

 

Independent Director 

  Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 
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5. 14th November, 2020 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Nidhi  Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

6. 11th January, 2021 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Nidhi Rastogi Executive & Non Independent 
Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

7. 30th January, 2021 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs.Nidhi Gupta Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

8. 15th February, 2021 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Nidhi Gupta Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

9. 01st March, 2021 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

Mrs. Nidhi Gupta Executive & Non Independent 

Director  & Women Director 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 

10. 13th March, 2021 Mr. Praveen Rastogi Managing Director 

  Mrs. Nidhi Gupta Executive & Non Independent 
Director  & Women Director 

  Mr. Sachin Rastogi Non Executive & Non 

Independent Director 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Independent Director 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Independent Director 

Mr. Vikash chand Tyagi Independent Director 
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The last Annual General Meeting was held on 20th September, 2020. 

The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2021 under review as well as in the last Annual General Meeting and the number of the other 

Directorships/Committee positions presently held by them are as under:- 

Name of 

Directors 

Date of 

Appointmen
t 

Categor

y 

No 

of 
Boar

d 

Meet
ings 

No. of 

Board 
meeting 

attended 

Attendance 

at the last 
AGM 

No of 

Directorship 
in other 

Public 

Companies 

Shareholdi

ng in the  
Company 

Mr. Praveen 

Rastogi 

01/12/2011 

 

MD 10 10 Present NIL 27.75 

Mrs. Nidhi 
Gupta 

20/09/2020 
 

ENID 6 6 Present NIL 3.50 

Mr. Sachin 

Rastogi 

01/12/2011 

 

NENID 10 10 Present NIL 0.18 

Mr. Prashant 
Rastogi 

30/09/2017 NEID 10 10 Present NIL NIL 

Mr. Gopal 

Krishan 
Sharma 

18/09/2018 NEID 10 10 Present NIL NIL 

Mr. Vikash 

Chand Tyagi 

29/07/2020 NEID 8 8 Present NIL NIL 

 
NEID- Non Executive Independent Director, ENID- Executive Non Independent Director MD- Managing 

Director, NENID- Non Executive Non Independent Director MD- Managing Director 

 

Present Directorships in other Companies/Committee Positions (including Continental Seeds and 

Chemical Limited) 

 

S. 

No. 
Name of Director Directorships (Name of Companies)* 

Committee(s) Position 

Name of the 

Company 
Committee Position 

1. 
Mr. Praveen Rastogi 

 

1) PRAVEEN AROMA PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

2) CAGX GLOBAL TELECOM 

SERVICE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

NIL NIL NIL 

NIL NIL NIL 

2. Mrs. Nidhi Gupta 
 

- 

NIL NIL NIL 
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3. Mr. Sachin Rastogi 

1) PRAVEEN AROMA PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

2) ALCAN LIFE SCIENCES  PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

3) CAGX GLOBAL TELECOM SERVICE 

PRIVATE LIMITED 

NIL NIL NIL 

4. Mr. Prashant Rastogi - NIL NIL NIL 

5. 
Mr. Gopal Krishan 

Sharma 
- NIL NIL NIL 

6. 
Mr. Vikash Chand 

Tyagi 
- NIL NIL NIL 

 

*  The directorship held by directors as mentioned above does not include directorship of foreign 

companies, Section 8 Companies and Private Limited Companies, if any. 

**   Subsidiary of a Limited Public Company 

 None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies and 

memberships in more than ten Committees and they do not act as Chairman of more than five Committees 

across all companies in which they are directors. 

2.5 Meeting of Independent Directors 

The Independent Directors of the Company meet at least once in every financial year without the presence 

of Executive Directors or representatives of management. All the Independent Directors strive to be 

present at such meetings.  

2.6 Evaluation of Board/Independent Directors Effectiveness  

In terms of provision of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued there under and as per SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors, on recommendation 

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee , have evaluated the effectiveness of the Board. 

Accordingly performance evaluation of the Board, each Director and Committees was carried out for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The evaluation of the Directors was based on various aspects 

which, inter alia, included the level of participation in the Board Meeting, understanding their roles and 

responsibilities, business of the Company and also effectiveness of their contribution. 

2.7 Information Placed before the Board  

In addition to the matters which statutorily require Board’s approval, the following matters as required 

under code on Corporate Governance are also regularly placed before the Board:-  

● Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.  

● Capital budgets and any updates.  

● Quarterly results for the listed entity and its operating divisions or business segments.  

● Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board of directors.  

● The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of 

directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.  

● Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important.  
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● Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.  

● Any material default in financial obligations to and by the listed entity, or substantial non-payment 

for goods sold by the listed entity.  

● Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including 

any judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the listed entity or taken 

an adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have negative implications on the listed entity.  

● Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.  

● Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual 

property.  

● Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in Human 

Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary 

Retirement Scheme etc.  

● Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of 

business.  

● Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks 

of adverse exchange rate movement, if material.  

● Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as 

non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.  

 

3. Committees of the Board  

In terms of the SEBI code on the Corporate Governance, the Board of the Company has constituted the 

following Committees: -  

● Audit Committee  

● Nomination & Remuneration Committee  

● Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

3.1 Audit Committee  

The Composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provision of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. The members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have requisite experience in 

accounting and financial management. 

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. Statutory Auditors is the permanent Invitee. 

The followings are the members at the Committee and there was 5 (Five) meetings held in the company 

during the FY 2020-21. 

Name of Directors Designation  

Mr. Prashant Rastogi Chairman 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Rastogi Member  

Mr. Praveen Rastogi Member  

 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are given below: 
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1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 

 

2. To seek information from any employee. 

 

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 

 

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

 

5. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

 

6. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal 

of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 

 

7. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

 

8. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 

9. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval 

 

10. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations 

to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

 

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 

internal control systems. 

 

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit. 

 

13. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 
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14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board. 

 

15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 

16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

 

17. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing. 

 

18. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & 

background, etc. of the candidate. 

 

19. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

 

20. Mandatorily reviews the following information: 

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by 

management; 

c. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

d. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee 

 

21. Review the Financial Statements of its subsidiary company, if any. 

 

22. Review the composition of the Board of Directors of its Subsidiary Company, if any. 

 

23. Review the Vigil mechanism (whistle blowing) policy. 

 

24. Review the use/application of funds raised through an issue (public issues, right issues, preferential issues 

etc) on a quarterly basis as a part of the quarterly declaration of financial results. Further, review on annual 

basis statements prepared by the Company for funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document. 

 

In addition, to carry out such other functions/powers as may be delegated by the Board to the Committee 

from time to time. 

 

● Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. 

● Recommending the appointment / re-appointment of external and internal auditors, tax auditors, cost 

auditors, fixation of statutory audit fees, internal audit fees and tax audit fees and also approval for 

payment of any other services. 

● Review with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board. 
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● Review half yearly un-audited/audited financial results/ review reports. 

● Review the financial statements in particular of the investments made by the unlisted subsidiary 

companies. 

● Review with management, performance of external and internal auditors, and adequacy of internal 

control system. 

● Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

● Discussions with statutory auditors before the audit commence about nature and scope of audit as 

well as have post audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern. 

● Approve the appointment of Chief Financial Officer. 

● To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders and creditors, if any. 

● Review of the use/application of money raised through Public/Rights/Preferential Issue, if any. 

● Approval or any subsequent modification(s) of transactions of the Company with related parties, if 

any. 

● Review and monitor auditors independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process. 

● Scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investments. 

● Review the Company’s financial and Risk Management Policy 

● Discussions with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon.  

● Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 

and reporting the matter to the board. 

● Valuation of Undertakings or assets of the Company where it is necessary. 

● To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower / Vigil mechanism. 

● Evaluation of Internal Financial control and risk management system. 

The Audit Committee during the year has approved the overall framework for RPTs, the Policy on dealing 

with the RPTs, the policy on materiality of RPTs and the criteria for granting ominous approval in line with 

the policy of dealing with RPTs in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 . 

 

3.2 Nomination & Remuneration Committee  

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee which 

is responsible for determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for Executive 

Directors including any compensation payment. 

The present composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under: 

Name of Directors Designation 

Mr. Prashant Rastogi 
Chairman 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma 
Member 

Mr. Sachin Rastogi 
Member 
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The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are given below: 

● The Nomination and Remuneration committee recommends to the board the compensation terms of 

the executive Directors. 

● The committee to carry out evolution of every director’s performance and recommend to the board 

his/her appointment and removal based on the performance.  

● The committee to identify persons who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 

the criteria laid down. 

● Framing and implementing on behalf of the Board and on behalf of the shareholders, a credible and 

transparent policy on remuneration of executive directors including ESOP,Pension Rights and any 

compensation payment. 

● Considering approving and recommending to the Board the changes in designation and increase in 

salary of the executive directors. 

● Ensuring the remuneration policy is good enough to attract, retain and motivate directors. 

● Bringing about objectivity in deeming the remuneration package while striking a balance between 

the interest of the Company and the shareholders.  

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the 

SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors at 

their meeting formulated the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the policy on Board Diversity of 

the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
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Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company 

Continental Seeds and Chemical Limited  

Remuneration Policy 

Preamble 

 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI listing Regulations,2015 provides that 

the Nomination and  Remuneration  Committee  (“NRC”)  shall  formulate  the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, 
relating to the remuneration  for  the  directors,  key  managerial personnel (“KMP”) and other employees.  

 

Objective 

 

The Remuneration Policy of Continental Seeds and Chemical Limited (the “Company”) is designed to attract, 

motivate, improve productivity and retain manpower, by creating a congenial work environment, 
encouraging initiatives, personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and 

involvement, besides offering appropriate remuneration packages and superannuation benefits. The Policy 

emphasize on promoting talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and 

create competitive advantage. The policy reflects the Company’s objectives for good corporate governance 
as well as sustained long term value creation for shareholders. 

The guiding principle is that the remuneration and the other terms of employment should effectively help in 

attracting and retaining committed and competent personnel. While designing remuneration packages, 

industry practices and cost of living are also taken into consideration. 

 

Applicability  

 

This Remuneration Policy applies to directors, senior management including its Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and other employees of the Company. 

 

Appointment criteria and qualifications 
The NRC shall indentify and ascertain the integrity, qualifications, expertise and experience of the person  
for  appointment  as  Director,  KMP   or   at   senior   management   personnel   and recommend to the Board 

his/her appointment. A person should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the 

position he/she is considered for appointment. 

 

Directors 

As per  the  Policy followed  by the  Company the  non-executive directors are  paid remuneration in the 
form of sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings as fixed  by the  Board  of Directors from 

time to time subject to statutory provisions.  

Remuneration of Whole Time Directors including Managing Director reflects the overall remuneration 

philosophy and guiding principle of the Company. When considering the Appointment and  remuneration  
of  Whole  Time  Directors,  the  NRC  considers  pay   and employment conditions in the  industry, merit  

and  seniority   of the   person and   the   paying   capacity of the Company. 

The NRC while designing the remuneration package considers the level and composition of remuneration  

to  be  reasonable  and  sufficient  to  attract, retain  and  motivate  the   person to ensure the quality required 
to run the Company successfully. 

The NRC while considering a remuneration package must ensure a balance between fixed and incentive 

pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and 

its goals. 

The term of office and  remuneration of Whole Time Directors  are  subject to the  approval of the Board 

of Directors, shareholders and the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013. Remuneration packages 
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for Whole Time Directors are designed to remunerate them fairly and responsibly.  The  Whole  Time  

Directors'  remuneration comprises of salary, perquisites, allowances apart from retirement benefits like 

P.F.,  Superannuation,  Gratuity,  etc  as  per  Rules of  the Company. 

The Whole Time Directors are entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as company cars, furnished 

accommodation, health care benefits, leave travel, communication facilities, etc.  Their terms of 

appointment also provide for severance payments. 

Evaluation 
The NRC  shall  carry  out  evaluation  of  performance  of  all  directors  in  every  year.  The performance 

evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director 

being evaluated. 

On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue 

the term of appointment of the independent director. 

Further the Independent directors of the Company shall hold at least one  meeting  in  a  year,  without the 

attendance of non- independent directors and members of management. The meeting shall: 

a) Review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole 
 

b) Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking  into  account the views of 

executive directors and non-executive directors. 

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

Remuneration of KMP and other senior management personnel is decided by the Managing Director.  

Total remuneration comprises of: 

1. A fixed base salary - set at a level aimed at attracting and retaining executives with professional 
and personal competence, showing good performance towards achieving Company goals. 

2. Perquisites – in the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, furnishing allowance, 

reimbursement of medical expenses, conveyance, telephone, leave travel, etc. 
3. Retirement benefits - contribution to PF, superannuation, gratuity, etc as per Company Rules. 
4. Variable  payments  -   performance linked variable pay reflecting short and long term performance 

5. Motivation /Reward - A performance appraisal is carried out annually and promotions/ increments/ 

rewards are decided by the Managing Director based on their annual performance. 

6. Severance payments - in accordance with terms of employment, if any. 
 

Other employees 
The remuneration of other employees is fixed from time to time as per  the  guiding  principles outlined 

above and considering industry standards and cost  of living. In addition to basic salary they are also 

provided perquisites, allowances and retirement benefits as per schemes of the Company and statutory 
requirements, where applicable. Policy of motivation/ reward/ severance payments is applicable to this 

category of personnel as in the case of those in the management cadre. 

 
Disclosure of information 

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company's Board of Directors, Whole Time 
Directors and KMP/ senior management personnel may be disclosed in the Company's annual financial 

statements as per statutory requirements. 
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Amendments 

The Board of Directors of the Company may subject to applicable laws is entitled to amend, suspend or 

rescind this Policy at any time. Any difficulties or ambiguities in the Policy will be resolved by the Board 

of Directors in line with the broad intent of the Policy. 

 

3.3 Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, “Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee” was formed by the Board at their meeting held on 1st November, 2017. The scope of the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of 
company. This Committee looks into transfer and transmission of shares/debentures/bonds etc., issue of 

duplicate share certificates, issue of shares on rematerialisation, consolidation and sub-division of shares 

and investors’ grievances. This Committee particularly looks into the investors grievances and oversees the 
performance of the Share Department /Share Transfer Agent and to ensure prompt and efficient investors’ 
services.  

The present composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as under: 

 

Sr. No. Name  Designation Nature of Directorship 

1. Mr. Prashant Rastogi  Chairman Independent Director 

2. Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma Member Independent Director 

3. Mr. Sachin Rastogi Member Non Executive and Non  Independent Director 

 

Role of stakeholder Relationship committee 

 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of our Board looks into: 
 The redressal of investors complaints viz. non-receipt of annual report, dividend payments etc. 

 Matters related to share transfer, issue of duplicate share certificate, dematerializations. 

 Also delegates powers to the executives of our Company to process transfers etc. 
 

The status on various complaints received / replied is reported to the Board of Directors as an Agenda item. 

More details on share transfers, investors’ complaints, etc. are given in the shareholder information section 
of this report. 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, acts as the Secretary of the aforesaid Committee 

1.4 Details of pecuniary relationship/transactions of the Non – Whole Time Directors/their Firms & 

Companies vis-a-vis the Company during the financial year 2020-2021 

Nil 

4. General Body Meetings 

Location and time where General Meetings held in the last 3 years is given below: 

 

Year AGM Location Date Time 

2019-20 AGM Delhi 20.09.2020  04:00 P..M. 

2018-19 AGM Delhi 27.09.2019 11:00 A.M. 

2017-18 AGM Delhi  18.09.2018 11:00 A.M. 

 

1. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with 

the interest of the Company at large. 
 

None of the materially significant transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest 
of the Company. Attention of the members is drawn to the disclosures of transactions with related parties set 

out in note no. 2.10 of the Financial Statements forming part of the Annual Report. 
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2. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock 

Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 

three years. 
 

During the year 2020-21, there were no penalties imposed upon the company by Stock exchanges or SEBI or 

any Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 
 

3. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy of the Company  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. The management of the 

Company, through this policy envisages to encourage the employees of the Company to report to the higher 

authorities any unethical, improper, illegal or questionable acts, deeds and things which the management or 

any superior may indulge in. This Policy has been circulated to employees of the Company and is also 
available on Company’s Website. 

 

No employee of the Company is denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 

4. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non mandatory requirements 

of this clause 
 
Company has complied with mandatory requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

5. Secretarial Auditor 
 

During the Financial year 2020-2021 the Company fall within the requirements of the provisions of Section 

204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. However, the Board has appointed M/s Laur & Associate, Company 

Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the period of three Financial Years from 01
st
 April, 

2019 to 31
st
 March, 2022. 

6. Secretarial Certificates 
 
Applicable on the company as on 31.03.2021 

 

7. Reconciliation And Share Capital Audit 
 

(i) Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and [(regulation 

55A of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996]. with the Stock Exchanges, 

certificates, on quarterly basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary in-Practice for due compliance 
of share transfer formalities by the Company. 

 

(ii) A Company Secretary in-Practice carried out a reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the 
total admitted share capital with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Service 

(India) Limited (“Depositories”) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total 

issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form 
and total number of shares in dematerialised form (held with Depositories). 

 

8. CEO & CFO certification 

The Director (Finance) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company gives annual certifications on 

financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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9. Means of Communications 
 

The Company’s website www.continentalseeds.co.in contains Annual Reports, Financial Results, 
Shareholding Pattern, etc. Management Discussions and Analysis forms part of the Directors’ Report, which 

is posted to the shareholders of the Company. 

 

10. Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and the same 

has been posted on the Company’s website. The Directors and the Senior Management Personnel affirm the 

Compliance of the Code annually. A certificate to this effect is attached to this Report duly signed by the as 

Director (Finance). 

15 Shares/Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors 
Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/
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CORPORATE POLICIES 

 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business transactions guided by our value 
system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 mandate the formulation of certain policies for all listed 
companies. The corporate governance policies are available on the Company’s website, at www.continentalseeds.co.in. 
The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated as needed.  

Key policies that have been adopted are as follows: 

Name of 

Policy 

Brief Description Weblink 

Whistleblowe
r Policy 

(Policy on 

vigil 
mechanism) 

 

The Company has adopted a whistleblower 
mechanism for directors and employees to report 
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s code 
of conduct and ethics. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/invet
or_folder/Policies/vigil%20machanism

%20policy.pdf 

Code of 

Conduct and 
Ethics 

 

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct and 
Ethics which forms the foundation of its ethics and 
compliance program. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/invet

or_folder/Policies/CODE%20OF%20C
ONDUCT%20FOR%20DIRECTORS

%20AND%20SENIOR%20MANAGE

MENT%20PERSONNEL.pdf 

Insider 

Trading 
Policy 

The policy provides the framework in dealing with 
securities of the Company 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/invet

or_folder/Policies/Insider-Trading-
Policy.pdf 

Policy for 

Determining 

Materiality 

for 
Disclosures 

 

This policy applies to disclosures of material events 
affecting Infosys and its subsidiaries. This policy is 
in addition to the Corporate Policy Statement on 
Investor Relations, which deals with the 
dissemination of UPSI. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/invet

or_folder/Policies/Policy%20for%20de

termining%20material%20subsidiaries.

pdf 

Remuneratio

n Policy 

 

This policy formulates the criteria for determining 
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial 
personnel, senior management and other employees. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/invet

or_folder/Policies/Remuneration%20Po

licy.pdf 

Policy on 
Material 
Subsidiaries 

 

The policy is used to determine the material 
subsidiaries and material unlisted Indian subsidiaries 
of the Company and to provide the governance 
framework for them. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve

tor_folder/Policies/Policy%20on%20

Materiality.pdf 

Related 
Party 
Transaction 
Policy 

 

The policy regulates all transactions between the 
Company and its related parties. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve

tor_folder/Policies/POLICY%20ON%

20RELATED%20PARTY%20TRAN
SACTIONS.pdf 
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Document 
Retention and 
Archival 
Policy 

 

The policy deals with the retention and archival of 
corporate records of Continental Seeds and 
Chemical Limited.  

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve

tor_folder/Policies/ARCHIVAL%20P

OLICY.pdf 

Policy on 
Board 
Diversity 

 

The policy is used to recognizes and embraces the 
benefits of having a diverse Board that possesses a 
balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity 
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the 
business of the Company. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve

tor_folder/Policies/POLICY%20ON%
20BOARD%20DIVERSITY.pdf 

Risk 
Management 
And Internal 
Control Policy 

This policy applies to all team members, whether 
full time, part time or casual at any level of 
seniority within the business. The policy also 
applies to contractors and consultants working 
on behalf of the Company. 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve
tor_folder/Policies/Risk_Management

_and_Internal_Control_Policy.pdf 

Policy on 
Materiality 

The purpose of this policy is to ascertain the 
requirement of disclosure of events or 
information to stock exchange(s) and defining 
criteria for determining materiality of events and 
information specified under clause (i) of sub-
regulation (4) of Regulation 30 of the Listing 
Regulations, 2015 

http://www.continentalseeds.co.in/inve

tor_folder/Policies/Policy%20on%20

Materiality.pdf 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER’S INFORMATION 

 

1. AGM date , time and venue  :           30th September, 2021 , at 04:00 P..M 

                                                                       Fourth floor, C-67, DDA Sheds, Okhla Phase-1, New Delhi             
                                                                        -110020 

 

2. Financial Year   : 01st April  2020 to 31stMarch, 2021 
  

3. Date of Book Closing  :  24th  September, 2021 to 30th September, 2021 

      (both days inclusive) 

 

4. Dividend Payment Date   : NA 

 

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges           : National Stock Exchange of India Limited  

Listing Department 

Exchange Plaza BandraKurla Complex, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400001 

 

6. Status of Listing Fees  :  Paid for FY 2020-2021 

 

7. Registered Office   : Fourth floor, C-67, DDA Sheds, Okhla Phase-1, New Delhi 
                                                                                               110020 
 
8. CIN     : L01111DL1983PLC015969 

 

9. Website/Email    : www.continentalseeds.co.in  

 

10. Depositories   : National Securities Depository Ltd.(NSDL) 
4th Floor, ‘A’ Wing, Trade World  

Kamla Mills Compound  

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel 

Mumbai - 400 013  

Tel: +91-22-24994200, Fax: +91-22-24972993  

 

Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.(CDSL) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers  

28th Floor, Dalal Street  

Mumbai - 400 023  

Tel: +91-22-22723333, Fax: +91-22-22723199 
 

11. ISIN      :           INE340Z01019  

12. Registrar and Transfer Agents :           Mas Services Limited 
            T-34, 2nd Floor Okhla Industrial Area Phase-II  

            New Delhi- 110020 

            Phone Number:- 011-26387281-83, Fax: 011-26387384; 

            Email: info@masserv.com, 
 

13. Members are requested to correspond with the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents- Mas Services 

Limited quoting their folio no./DP ID/Client ID No at the following address: 
Mas Services Limited 
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T-34, 2nd Floor Okhla Industrial Area Phase-II  

New Delhi- 110020 

Phone Number:- 011-26387281-83, Fax: 011-26387384; Email: info@masserv.com, 
 

14. Share Transfer System 
 
Share Transfer in physical form can be lodged with Mas Services Limited at the above mentioned address. 

Such Transfer are normally completed within 15 days from the date of receipt. The Company Secretary 

is duly empowered to approve transfer of shares. 

The Total Number of shares transferred in physical form during the financial year 2020-2021 

 

Number of Transfer Deeds Nil 

Number of Shares Nil 

 

15. Investor’s complaints received during the financial year 2020-2021: 

 
No complaints received during the financial Year 2020-2021. 

 

16. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31
st
 March, 2021 

 

No. of ordinary Shares No.of 

Shareholders 

Percentage of 

total 

Shareholders 

Shares Amount 

(Rs) 

Percentage of 

total 

Shareholdings 

 Up  To 5,000 33 10.820 1990 0.002 

 5001 To 10,000 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 10001 To 20,000 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 20001 To 30,000 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 30001 To 40,000 80 26.230 2666410 2.666 

 40001 To 50,000 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 50001 To 1,00,000 118 38.689 8332520 8.330 

 1,00,000 and Above 74 24.262 89027160 89.002 

Total 305 100 100028080 100 
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17. Categories of Shareholdings as on 31
st
 March, 2021: 

 

S. No. Category Shares % 

A Promoters Holding 

1 Indian Promoters  7229472 72.27 

2 Foreign Promoters - - 

Sub Total (A) 7229472 72.27 

B Public Shareholding 

1 Institutional Investors - - 

a) Mutual Funds & UTI - - 

b) 

Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance 
Companies(Central/State Government 

Institutions/Non-Government Institutions) - - 

c) Foreign Institutional Investors - - 

Sub Total (B1) 0.00 0.00 

2 Non Institutional Investors 

a) Private Corporate Bodies    

b) Indian Public 2773336 27.73 

c) NRIs   

d) Any other  

i) Foreign Banks - - 

ii) Trusts - - 

iii) OCBs   

 Sub Total (B2) 2773336 27.73 

 Total public Shareholding (B=B1+B2) 2773336 27.73 

C Shares held by Custodian and against 

which depository receipts have been issued 

- - 

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 10002808 100 

 

19. Dematerialization of Shares  

 

Trading in the Equity Shares of the Company is only permitted in the dematerialized form as per the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular dated May 29, 2000. 

The Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories viz. National Security Depository Ltd. 
(NSDL) as well as Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) to facilitate the demat trading. As on 31st 
March, 2020, the 100 % of the Company Share’s Capital is in dematerialized form. 
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20. Market Price Information: 

 

Month 
NSE (in Rs) 

Highest Lowest 

01st April, 2020 – 31st March, 2021        21.55       05.90 

 

21. Scrip Codes: NSE (Emerge): CONTI 

 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT 

I, Praveen Rastogi, Chairman and Managing Director of Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited, hereby 

declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code of 

Conduct as on 31st March, 2021. 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 02/09/2021           
             

Sd/- 

                                                                                                     Praveen Rastogi 

        Chairman and Managing Director 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To the Members of  

Continental Seeds and Chemicals Limited 
 

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Continental Seeds and 

Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) for the period ended on 31st March, 2021, as stipulated Regulation 

24 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said with 

various Stock Exchanges (hereinafter referred to as “the agreement”). 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

3. In our opinion and based on our review and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, we certify that the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

Regulation 24 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been 

complied with in all material aspects by the Company. 
 

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Laur and Associates  

(Registration No. S2017DE454000) 

 

Sd/- 

 

Name:  Manju Laur 

FCS-9254, C.P No.: 12247 

UDIN number:F009254C000865483 

 
Place: Noida 

Date: 2nd September, 2021 



OPMas         PMAS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
 (LLPIN-AAJ-1703) 

                                                          Chartered Accountants 
 

Branch Office: 1/25, 3rd Floor, Lalita Park, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092 

Mobile: 9990447706 Phone: 011-43025308, E-mail: pmas.del@gmail.com 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED  
CIN: L01111DL1983PLC015969 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND 

CHEMICALS LIMITED(‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st 

March 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in Basis for Qualified 

Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 

information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

i. We are unable to observe physical inventories of Stock, Traded goods, finished 

goods due to COVID 19 and we are also unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative 

means concerning the inventories held at 31st March, 2021, however as explained by 

the management, physical verification of inventories has been conducted at regular 

intervals and no material discrepancies were observed. 

ii. Balance under Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors, loans and advances given by 

the Company and parties from whom unsecured loans have been taken are subject to 

confirmations and adjustments, if any, required upon such confirmations are not 

ascertainable and hence not provided for. 

 



 

 

iii. Certain balances of Sundry debtors to Rs. 10, 64,57,382/- were outstanding as on 

31/03/2021. The confirmations from the parties to whom these amount to be 

received have not been made available. Out of such debtors, provision for doubtful 

debts should be recognized in respect of debtors, outstanding for a period of three 

years or more where no movement has taken place and no confirmations are 

available. Adjustments if any are not ascertainable and will be provided on 

identification of such parties. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 



 

 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the 

financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.  



 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 



 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  

2  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books  

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in “Annexure B”.  

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us:  

i.   The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position 



 

 

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 

for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

  

For PMAS And Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Regn. No. 024726N/N500068 

 
 
 
 
Sd/- 

CA Neha Jawa 

Partner 

Membership No. – 529237 

New Delhi: 30.06.2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

“ANNEXURE  A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the 

members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2021, we report the following: 

(i)       (a)   The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including   

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.  

            (b)   As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management 

during the year in accordance with the phased programme of verification 

adopted by the management which, in our opinion, provides for physical 

verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification. 

            (c)  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our   

examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable 

properties are held in the name of the company. 

 

 (ii)         The Management physically verified the inventories of finished goods, semi-

finished goods, and raw materials at regular intervals. The management has 

informed us that no Material discrepancies were reported during such physical 

verification. 

 

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted any loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register 

maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013; and therefore 

paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable,  

 

 (iv)  In The Company has provided continuing corporate guarantee in violation of 

provisions of section 185 & 186 on behalf of related partnership firm to the tune 

of Rs.10.60 Crore to obtain the credit facilities.(refer additional note no. 2.16). 

 

  (v)  The company has accepted deposits in term of provisions of sections 73 to 76 of 

the companies Act, 2013. Further, we are informed that no order has been passed 

by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve 

Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal(refer additional note no. 2.17) 



 

 

  

  (vi)  As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of 

cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the 

activities carried on by the Company.  

 

  (vii)  (a)   According to the records of the company and information and explanations given 

to us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues, including Income-tax, Tax deducted at sources, Tax collected at 

source, Professional Tax, Sales Tax, value added tax, Goods and Service Tax 

Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material 

statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities; 

   

           (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 

disputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, 

Excise Duty, sales tax, VAT, GST, Cess and other material statutory dues in 

arrears /were outstanding as at 31 March, 2021 for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable.  

 

   (viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us there was no default 

in repayment of dues to the financial institutions or bank. Further the company 

has not issued any Debentures.  

 

    (ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans except Term Loan 

including GCL of Rs. 255.38 Lacs  during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

     (x) According to the information & explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the 

company has been noticed or reported during the year under report.  

 

(xi)  In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 

has been paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  



 

 

 

(xii)  Since the company is not a Nidhi Company, this clause is not applicable upon it. 

 

     (xiii)  All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 

and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and their details have been disclosed in the 

financial statements, as per the applicable accounting standards. 

 

      (xiv)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 

private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and 

hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.  

 

(xv)    According to the information and explanations given to us, company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with the persons connected with director 

details. Therefore, the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 is not 

required to be complied. 

 

(xvi)    The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

For PMAS And Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Regn. No. 024726N/N500068 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CA Neha Jawa 

Partner 

Membership No. - 529237 

New Delhi: 30.06.2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

“ANNEXURE  B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause ( i ) of Sub-section 3 of Section 

143 of the Companies Act,2013(“ the Act “ ) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Continental 

Seeds & Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our 
audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management`s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India .These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act,2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
the financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company`s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 



 

 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that  

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorities of management and directors of the company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For PMAS And Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Regn. No. 024726N/N500068 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CA Neha Jawa 

Partner 

Membership No. - 529237 

New Delhi:  30.06.2021 

 



(Amount in Rs.)

As At As At

 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

I.

1

1.1 Fixed Assets

3 28,497,508                   18,700,392                           

Right of Use Assets 3 17,007,644                   12,805,093                           

Investment Property -                                       

Capital Work in Progress 3 118,186,373                 47,334,222                           

1.2

-                                -                                       

(ii)  Trade Receivables 4 11,924,613                   12,885,060                           

-                                       

5 747,610                        1,115,316                             

1.3 6 1,156,578                     872,780                                

1.4 7 6,738,696                     12,699,196                           

184,259,022                 106,412,061                         

2 Current Assets

2.1 Inventories 8 34,855,342                   49,244,631                           

2.2 Financial Assets

-                                       

4 94,532,769                   31,882,045                           

9 3,613,769                     4,157,320                             

(iv) Bank Balances (Deposites with maturity upto 12 months) -                                       

-                                       

10 705,449                        1,173,446                             

2.3 Other Current Assets 11 16,288,977                   30,385,017                           

149,996,307                 116,842,458                         

334,255,329                 223,254,519                         

II.

3

3.1 12 100,028,080                 100,028,080                         

3.2 13 20,295,757                   16,788,966                           

120,323,837                 116,817,046                         

4

4.1 -                                       

4.2

 14 22,634,753                   3,654,861                             

(ii)  Lease Liabilities 15 13,300,815                   12,174,051                           

16 910,291                        945,290                                

4.3 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 -                                       

4.4 Provisions 17 59,811                          59,811                                  

4.5 Other Non- Current Liabilities -                                       

36,905,670                   16,834,013                           

5 Current Liabilites

5.1 Financial Liabilites

(i)   Borrowings 18 30,298,209                   29,325,080                           

(ii)  Trade Payables 19 53,564,261                   29,792,769                           

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises

Due to others

(iii) Lease Liabilites 15 4,322,447                     1,513,081                             

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 9,151,331                     3,348,146                             

5.2 21 78,286,932                   23,397,001                           

5.3 Provisions 22 -                                63,998                                  

5.4 Current tax liabilities (Net) 1,402,642            2,163,385                             

177,025,822                 89,603,460                           

334,255,329                 223,254,519                         

The accompanying notes 1 & 2form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For PMAS & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN No.- 024726N/N500068

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

CA Neha Jawa Pravin Rastogi Sachin Rastogi

Partner Director Director

M.No. 529237 DIN NO: 01414608 DIN NO: 05134858

Delhi: 30.06.2021

Other Current Liabilities

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

CIN No.L01111DL1983PLC015969

Other Equity

Non-Current Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Equity

(v)   Loans

Equity Share Capital

Financial Assets

(iii) Loans

(ii)   Trade Receivables

Property, Plant & Equipment

 Balance Sheet as at 31st March ,2021

(iii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

(vi) Other Financial Assets

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

ASSETS

(i)    Investments

Total Current Assets

(i)   Investments

(iv) Other Financial Assets

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sr.No. Particulars Note No.

Total Equity & Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Other Non-Current Assets

Non-Current Liabilities

Total Assets

Total Equity

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i)   Borrowings

Total Non- Current Assets

Liabilities



Amount in Rs.

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

I  Revenue from Operations 23 953,979,928     879,150,623                

II  Other Income 24 3,061,748         2,163,765                    

III  Total Income from Operations 957,041,675     881,314,388                

IV EXPENSES

Cost of Material Consumed 25 341,580,716     -                               

Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 565,943,510     860,904,656                

 Changes in Inventories 26 18,579,532       (13,441,587)                 

 Employee Benefit Expenses 27 7,538,147         2,929,861                    

 Finance Cost 28 5,413,991         4,263,207                    

 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3 6,133,076         4,390,774                    

 Other Expenses 29 6,490,789         14,612,978                  

 Total Expenses 951,679,760     873,659,888                

V  Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-

IV) 

5,361,915         7,654,500                    

X  Exceptional Items 30 493,769            (952,188)                      

 Profit beforeTax 4,868,146         8,606,688                    

XI  Tax Expense 

 Current Tax 1,402,642         2,163,385                    

 MAT Credit utilised -                    -                               

 Net current tax -                    -                               

 Earlier Year Tax Adjustment -                    -                               

 Deferred Tax Assets 283,798            38,779.46                    

XI  Profit(Loss) for the Period 3,749,302         6,482,082                    

XVI  Other Comprehensive Income 

XVIII  Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 3,749,302         6,482,082                    

 Paid-up Equity Share Capital ( Face value of Rs.10 per share) 

XIX  Earnings per Equity Share 

 -Basic 0.37                  1.00                              

 -Diluted 0.37                  1.00                              

 Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings 

per share 

 Basic 10,002,808       6,482,694.00               

Diluted 10,002,808       6,482,694.00               

The accompanying notes 1 & 2 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For PMAS & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN No.- 024726N/N500068

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

CA Neha Jawa Praveen Rastogi Sachin Rastogi

Partner Managing Director Director

M.No. 529237 DIN No: 01414608 DIN NO: 05134858

Delhi: 30.06.2021

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

 CIN No.L01111DL1983PLC015969

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2021

For the year ended on

Sr.No. Particulars Note No



Amount in Rs.

As At As At

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Profit before tax 4,868,146                         8,606,688                     

Non Cash Adjustment 

Depreciation and amortisation 6,133,076                         4,390,774                     

Profit after adjustment of all non cash items 11,001,222                       12,997,461                   

Provision for employees Benefit -                                   (65,181)                         

Gain on termination of lease liability (674,982)                          

Securities deposits written back

Income Tax Short Provisions made for earlier years

Adjustment for income and expenditure other than operation

Interest income

Finance cost 5,413,991                         4,263,207                     

cashflow from operation before change in working capital 15,740,231                       17,195,487                   

Cash from Operations before Working Capital Changes

Increase in Current Assets 36,241,978                       19,580,449                   

Decrease in Current Assets (62,650,724)                     96,929,838                   

Increase in Current Liabilities 55,863,060                       17,139,039                   

Decrease in Current Liabilities 29,475,681                       (99,799,067)                  

Cashflow from operation after working capital change 74,670,226                       51,045,745                   

Less: Income tax Paid 2,405,895                         3,619,124                     

Net cashflow from operating Activities (A) 72,264,331                       47,426,622                   

Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Fixed Assets (83,470,516)                     (37,901,233)                  

Interest income

Cash flow from Investing Activities (B) (83,470,516)                     (37,901,233)                  

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Payment of lease liabilties (4,528,825)                       (1,749,120)                    

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 18,979,892                       (754,303)                       

Borrowing Cost (3,788,432)                       (3,329,834)                    

Cash flow from Financial Activities 10,662,635                       (5,833,257)                    

Net increase/Decrease in cash or cash equivalent (A+B+C) (543,551)                          3,692,131                     

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 58,920                              329,075                        

Balance with Bank 4,098,400                         136,115                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,613,769                         4,157,320                     

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 1,416,583                         58,920                          

Balance with Bank 2,197,187                         4,098,400                     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,613,769                         4,157,320                     

The accompanying notes 1 & 2 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For PMAS & Associates LLP For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

FRN No.- 024726N/N500068

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

CA Neha Jawa Praveen Rastogi Sachin Rastogi

Partner Director Director

M.No. 529237 DIN No: 01414608 DIN NO: 05134858

Delhi: 30.06.2021

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

 CIN No.L01111DL1983PLC015969

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31.03.2021

Particulars



Continental Seeds & Chemicals Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Equity Share 

Capital

Securities 

Premium Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Capital 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Equity 

Instruments 

through other 

comprehensiv

e income

Cash 

Flow 

Hedge 

Reserve

Other 

Items of 

other 

Comprehe

nsive 

Income

Total Equity 

Atrributable to 

Equityholders of 

the Company

Balance as of 01 April, 2020 100,028,080         -                            16,258,665             530,301           -         -                   -         -            116,817,046          

Increase in share capital on account of bonus issue -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Increase in share capital on account of fresh issue -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Amount utilized for bonus issue -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Profit for the Period -                        -                            3,749,302               -                   -         -                   -         -            3,749,302              

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Income Tax Short Provisions made for earlier years -                         -                        

Balance as of 31 March, 2021 100,028,080         -                            20,007,966             530,301           -         -                   -         -            120,566,347          

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Equity Share 

Capital

Securities 

Premium Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Capital 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Equity 

Instruments 

through other 

comprehensiv

e income

Cash 

Flow 

Hedge 

Reserve

Other 

Items of 

other 

Comprehe

nsive 

Income

Total Equity 

Atrributable to 

Equityholders of 

the Company

Balance as of 01 April, 2019 60,016,850           25,920,000               23,867,813             530,301           -         -                   -         -            110,334,964          

Increase in share capital on account of bonus issue 40,011,230           -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            40,011,230            

Increase in share capital on account of fresh issue -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Amount utilized for bonus issue -                        (25,920,000)              (14,091,230)            -                   -         -                   -         -            (40,011,230)           

Profit for the Period -                        -                            6,482,082               -                   -         -                   -         -            6,482,082              

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -                        -                            -                         -                   -         -                   -         -            -                        

Income Tax Short Provisions made for earlier years -                         -                        

Balance as of 31 March, 2020 100,028,080         -                            16,258,665             530,301           -         -                   -         -            116,817,046          

Other Equity

Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Other Equity

Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income



Property, Plant & Equipment

 Deemed Cost 

as on  ADDITIONS     AS AT Upto DEPRECIATION Total Upto AS AT AS AT

01.04.2020 during the yr 31.03.2021 01.04.2020 FOR THE PERIOD 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

LAND 5,174,364             12,258,196            -                            17,432,559             -                       -                             -                            17,432,559            5,174,364         

BUILDING 12,040,192           -                         -                            12,040,192             10,109,524          113,969                     10,223,493               1,816,699              1,930,668         

PLANT & MACHINERY 18,872,819           300,000                 -                            19,172,819             12,767,541          1,545,410                  14,312,951               4,859,868              6,105,278         

FURNITURE & FIXTURE 477,532                -                         -                            477,532                  477,532               -                             477,532                    -                         -                    

ELECTRICAL FITTINGS & EQUIPMENTS 390,258                -                         -                            390,258                  334,279               14,387                       348,666                    41,592                   55,979              

VEHICLES 3,710,502             -                         -                            3,710,502               3,038,547            209,388                     3,247,935                 462,567                 671,955            

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 650,305                60,170                   -                            710,475                  574,947               55,461                       630,408                    80,067                   75,358              

AIR CONDITIONER 323,320                -                         -                            323,320                  323,234               -                             323,234                    86                          86                     

COMPUTER 491,559                -                         -                            491,559                  450,101               26,185                       476,286                    15,273.0                41,458              

LAB. TESTING EQUIPMENTS 287,388                -                         -                            287,388                  245,635               18,003                       263,638                    23,750                   41,753              

PAGER 8,600                    -                         -                            8,600                      8,600                   -                             8,600                        -                         -                    

D.G. SET 45 KVA 600,000                -                         -                            600,000                  366,218               58,952                       425,170                    174,830                 233,782            

WEIGHING MACHINE 100 KG. 50,000                  -                         -                            50,000                    30,518                 4,913                         35,431                      14,569                   19,482              

WEIGHING MACHINE 300 KG. 65,000                  -                         65,000                    39,673                 6,387                         46,060                      18,940                   25,327              

THERMIC FLUID HEATER 4,603,462             -                         4,603,462               278,559               768,195                     1,046,754                 3,556,708              4,324,903         

-                       

TOTAL TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 47,745,301           12,618,366            -                            60,363,666             29,044,908          2,821,250                  31,866,158               28,497,508            18,700,392       

RIGHT TO USE 14,502,881           12,321,543            4,807,166                 22,017,258             1,697,787            3,311,827                  5,009,614                 17,007,644            12,805,093       

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

PLANT & MACHINERY UNDER CONSTRUCTION* 47,334,222           76,452,151            5,600,000                 118,186,373           -                       -                             -                            118,186,373          47,334,222       

Total Fixed Assets 109,582,403         101,392,060          10,407,166               200,567,297           30,742,696          6,133,076                  36,875,772               163,691,525          78,839,707       

Previous Year 64,369,825           49,816,040            4,603,462                 109,582,403           26,351,922          4,390,774                  30,742,696               78,839,708            38,017,903       

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

DEPRECIATION CHART AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01.04.20119 to 31.03.2020

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Note 3

 SALE/Adjustment 

PARTICULARS



Note No:4

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Trade Receivables

(A)Non Current 

Considered Good* 11,924,613                    12,885,060                       

Considered Doubtful -                                   

Sub-total(A) 11,924,613                    12,885,060                       

(B) Current

Unsecured

Considered Good 94,532,769                    31,882,045                       

Considered Doubtful -                                -                                   

94,532,769                    31,882,045                       

Less: Allowance for credit losses -                                   

Sub-total(B) 94,532,769                    31,882,045                       

Total (A+B) 106,457,382                  44,767,106                       

* The Management has certificated that payment will be realised shortly and there is no need to make provisions.

Note No: 5

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Financial Assets- Non Current

Security Deposit 735,316                         1,114,316                         

FDR 6,000                             1,000                                

Add: Accrued Interest 6,294                             -                                   

Total 747,610                         1,115,316                         

Note No: 6

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Deferred Tax Assets

Opening Balance 872,780                         834,001                            

Add:Provision made during the year 283,798                         38,779                              

Total 1,156,578                      872,780                            

Note No:7

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Non Current Assets

Advances to Suppliers 6,392,000                      12,352,500                       

Advance for Land* 346,696                         346,696                            

Total 6,738,696                      12,699,196                       

* Company has given Advances for land to swadeshi poly dated 18/08/2012 but possession has not been

Note No:8

Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(As taken, valued & certified by the management)

Raw Material 4,190,244                      -                                   

Work in progress* 28,618,949                    -                                   

Finished Goods 1,363,050                      -                                   

Traded Goods 683,100                         49,244,631                       

Total 34,855,342                    49,244,631                       

* The Management has certificated that the WIP Consists those stock which has either not been completed or which can not be 

refilled in Containers& still in machineries.

  transferred. 



Note No:9

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Cash & Cash Equivalents

(i) Cash in Hand 1,416,583                      58,920                              

Sub Total (i) 1,416,583                      58,920                              

(ii)Balance with Banks

Current A/c with:

-HDFC Akbarpur 4,978                             25,120                              

-HDFC Bahraich 5,000                             5,000                                

-ICICI Bank -Amd Nagar 40,000                           40,000                              

-HDFC Bank (Escrow A/c) 2,138,175                      

-PNB Current A/c 4,019,246                         

-PNB Begu Sarai 9,034                             9,034                                

Sub Total (ii) 2,197,187                      4,098,400                         

Total (i+ii) 3,613,769                      4,157,320                         

Note No:10

Other Financial Asstes

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Excess remuneration paid to directors received back -                                1,173,446                         

Cheque deposited but not cleared 405,241                         

Rent receivable 300,207                         -                                   

Total 705,448                         1,173,446                         

Note No:11

Other Current Asstes

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Loans & Advances

Unsecured, Considered Goods

Advance to Supplier for Purchase* 11,733,700                    25,242,640                       

Rent Receivable 148,773                            

Advance for Expenses 25,975                           51,975                              

Prepaid Insurance 438,417                         198,136                            

NSDL

Balance with Government Department 4,090,886                      4,743,493                         

Total 16,288,977                    30,385,017                       

* The management has certified that the said advance is in relation to trade.



Notes Forming Integral Part of Balance Sheet

Note No.12

Equity Share Capital

Number Amount Number Amount

12,000,000                  120,000,000                12,000,000      120,000,000        

-                               -                               -                   -                       

Equity Shares of  Rs 10 each fully paid* 10,002,808                  100,028,080                10,002,808      100,028,080        

10,002,808                  100,028,080                10,002,808      100,028,080        

*Of Above, 40,01,123 Equity shares are issued by way of Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Free Reserves in the FY 2019-20

Equity Shares

Number Amount Number Amount

10,002,808                  100,028,080                -                    -                        

-                               -                               -                    -                        

-                               -                               -                    -                        

10,002,808                  100,028,080                -                    -                        

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares 

held

% of Holding 

Jai Shree Rastogi* 2,875,600                    28.75% 2,875,600        28.75%

Praveen Rastogi 2,775,792                    27.75% 2,775,792        27.75%

* Demise of Mrs. Jai Shree Rastogi took place on 30th April,2021. Her Shares has not been transferred to her lefgal heirs till the sigining of Financial Statements.

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares 

held

% of Holding 

2,700,000                    26.99% 2,700,000         26.99%

5,651,392                    56.50% 5,651,392        56.50%

1,651,417                    16.51% 1,651,417        16.51%

Preference shares of Rs 10 each

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

Particulars

a. Authorised Share Capital:

Equity Shares of  Rs 10 each

 As at 31 March, 2020  As at 31 March, 2021 

The Company has only one type of Equity Shares having par value of Rs.10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 

b. Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital:

Total

c. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end

of the reporting period

Particulars
Preference Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Shares Issued during the year 

Shares bought back during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

d. Right of Equity Shareholders

per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining 

assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount.

e. Shares in the Company held by each shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares specifying the numbers of shares held

Name of Shareholder  As at 31 March, 2020 

 As at 31 March, 2020 

 As at 31 March, 2021 

 As at 31 March, 2021 

Public

Promoter

Other

Equity Shares :

Shareholding Pattern



Note No: 13

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Equity

a. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance 530,301                         530,301                            

(+) Current Year Transfer -                                -                                   

 Written Back in Current Year -                                -                                   

Closing Balance 530,301                         530,301                            

b. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance -                                25,920,000                       

(+) Securities premium credited on share issue -                                -                                   

(-) Premium utilised for various reasons

      Premium on redemption of Debentures -                                -                                   

     Issue of Bonus Shares* -                                25,920,000                       

Closing Balance -                                -                                   

c. Surplus

Opening Balance 16,258,665                    23,867,813                       

(+)Profit for the current year 3,749,302                      6,482,082                         

(+)Transfer from Reserves

(-) Issue of Bonus Shares* -                                14,091,230                       

(-)Proposed Dividends -                                   

(-)Interim Dividends -                                   

(+)MAT Credit Adjustment -                                   

(-)Income Tax Short Provisions made for earlier years (242,510)                       -                                   

19,765,456                    16,258,665                       

Total 20,295,757                    16,788,966                       

*4001123 Equity shares was issued during the FY 2019-20 by utilizing Free Reserves.However in Resolution shares have been shown issued

by utilizing Capital Reserve. The Management has informed us that this is the clerical error & the necessary correction would 

be done in due course of time.

Note No: 14

Non Current Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Financial Liabilites

Borrowings

i) Secured

From Banks

Term Loan

(Secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and the personal

guarantee of directors of the Company)

With HDFC Bank -                                2,354,861                         

GECL A/c 4,278,811                      

HDFC Term Loan 15,025,142                    

Sub-total(i) 19,303,953                    2,354,861                         

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI

PARTICULARS

As at



ii) Unsecured

(a) Loan from Directors/Shareholders 3,330,800                      1,300,000                         

Sub-total(b) 3,330,800                      1,300,000                         

Subtotal(ii) 3,330,800                      1,300,000                         

Total 22,634,753                    3,654,861                         

Note No: 15

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Financial Lease Liabilities

Non Current Lease Liabiltiy 13,300,815                    12,174,051                       

Current Lease Liability 4,322,447                      1,513,081                         

Total 17,623,262                    13,687,132                       

Note No: 16

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Non- Current Financial Liabilities

Security received from dealers* 910,290                         945,290                            

Total 910,290                         945,290                            

*One Time Refundable Security is received from dealer on account of sale of goods.

Note No: 17

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Non Current Provisions

Provision for Gratuity* 59,811                           59,811                              

Total 59,811                           59,811                              

* Provision for Gratuity is not done by the management during the year. No Actuarial report is taken.

Note No: 18

Current Liabilities

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Loans Repayable on Demand

-Secured Borrowings

Cash Credit Limit from HDFC Bank 30,298,209                    29,325,080                       

Total 30,298,209                    29,325,080                       

The company has been sanctioned working capital limits for Rs. 300.00 lacs comprising of Fund based limits (Cash Credit). The CC limits are 

secured against hypothecation of present and future stocks and book debts. The said limits are also secured by way of collateral security of 

immovable properties & personal gurantee of shareholders and corporate guarantee as under;-

 (a) Free Hold Land, Mauja Sherkhan, Sarai, Sambhal, 244302, Owned by Smt. Jai Shree Rastogi 

 (b)Free Hold Land,Kukrawali, Pargana Sambhal, Tehsil Sambhal, 244302 

 (c)Free Hold Land,Hallu Sarai, Sambhal, Backside Canara Bank, 24430, Owned by Neha Rastogi 

 (d)Personal Guarantee of all director, minimum 51% Shareholders, collateral owners 



Note No: 19

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Trade Payables 

Creditors for Goods

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                                   

Add: Interest due 2,455,503                      1,550,608                         

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 34,574,460                    26,292,510                       

Creditors for Capital Goods

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                                   

Add: Interest due 499,485                         437,551                            

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11,334,296                    

Creditors for Expenses 4,700,518                      1,512,101                         

Total 53,564,261                    29,792,769                       

Note No: 20

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Current Financial liabilities

Current Maturity of Unsecured Loan (Refer Note 2.7) 7,186                             7,186                                

Current Maturity of Term Loan (Refer Note 2.7) 5,589,194                      841,271

Expenses Payable

Audit Fee Payable 277,500                         540,000                            

Salary & Remuneration 1,467,272                      1,447,174                         

Cheque Issued but not presented 167,138                         

Electricity Expenses 818,515                         497,515                            

Legal & Professional Fees 501,937                         15,000                              

Others 322,589                         

Total 9,151,331                      3,348,146                         

Note No: 21

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Current Liabilities

Advance from Buyers 78,043,716                    23,010,879                       

(The Management has certificated that the said advances is taken during the normal course of business

& is having interest free.)

Others 65,024                              

Statutory Dues Payable

 TDS Payable                          243,216 321,098                            
Total 78,286,932                    23,397,001                       

Note No: 22

Current Provisions

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Provision For Bonus -                                63,998                              

Total -                                63,998                              

No provision for bonus is created for the year.



Note No.23

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Revenue from Operations

-Sale of Manufactured Goods                      309,562,750                     870,946,724 
 -Sale of Traded Goods                      616,235,998                                     -   
 Less: Cash Discount                             253,221                           372,901 

                     925,545,528                     870,573,823 
 Job Work Charges Received                        28,434,400                         8,576,800 
Total 953,979,928                    879,150,623                   

Note No.24

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Income

Gain on termination of lease rent 459,686                           -                                 

Interest 6,294                               

Provision for gratuity reversed 65,181                            

 Rent Income                           2,595,768                         2,098,584 
Total 3,061,748                        2,163,765                       

Note No.25

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Cost Of Material Consumed

Opening Stock of Raw Materials -                                   -                                 

Add: Purchase of Raw Materials 316,234,301                    -                                 

                     316,234,301                                     -   

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials                          4,190,244 

                     312,044,058 

Add: Direct Expenses

-Store & Consumption 1,646,222                        -                                 

-Freight Inward -                                   -                                 

-Boiler Running Expenses 11,812,040                      -                                 

-Power & Fuel Expenses 12,913,366                      -                                 

-Wages Expenses 3,137,921                        -                                 

-Job work charges 27,109                             -                                 

Total Cost of Material Consumed 341,580,716                    -                                 

CONTINENTAL SEEDS AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

 FOURTH FLOOR, C-67, DDA SHEDS, OKHLA, PHASE-1, NEW DELHI 
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Note No.26

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Change in Inventories

Inventories at the end of the year

-Finished goods                          1,363,050 49,244,631                     

-Work In Progress                        28,618,949 -                                 

-Traded Goods 683,100                           -                                 

TOTAL (A) 30,665,099                      49,244,631                     

Inventories at the beginning of the year

-Finished goods                                      -   

-Work In Progress                                      -   

-Traded Goods 49,244,631                      35,803,044                     

TOTAL (B) 49,244,631                      35,803,044                     

Changes during the Year (18,579,532)                     13,441,587                     
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Note No.27

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Employees Benefit Expenses

 Director Remuneration*                          1,820,000                           707,000 

 Salaries & Wages                          5,576,492                         1,948,863 

 Staff Welfare Expenses                               15,100                                     -   

 Director Medical Expenses                                      -                             210,000 

 Provision for Bonus                             126,555                             63,998 

Total 7,538,147                        2,929,861                       

Note No.28

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Finance cost 

(i) Interest Cost 3,557,899                        3,313,119                       

 (ii) Finance Cost on Lease Liabiltiy* 1,625,559                        933,372                          

(ii) Bank Charges 9,993                               16,716                            

(iii) Loan Processing Fee 220,540                           

Total 5,413,991                        4,263,207                       

*

Note No:3

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

(i) Depreciation 6,133,076                        4,390,774                       

Total 6,133,076                        4,390,774                       
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Note No.29

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Manufacturing & Job Work Charges

Store and Consumption -                                   1,925,669                       

Boiler Running Expenses -                                   1,489,433                       

Sub-total (a) -                                   3,415,102                       

Other Expenses

Advertisement Expenses 67,935                             388,296                          

Payment to Statutory & Tax Auditor 300,000                           300,000                          

Legal and Professional Expenses 513,000                           442,000                          

Communication Expenses 5,585                               16,159                            

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 29,052                             640,746                          

Power & Fuel Expenses 33,376                             1,319,815                       

Interest to MSME Supplier 966,829                           223,022                          

Freight Expenses 1,196,246                        1,143,772                       

Loading & Unloading Expenses 7,181                               188,976                          

Rates & Taxes 292,048                           1,561,821                       

Rent & Storage Charges 300,000                           -                                 

Rebate & Discount 337,081                           2,324,816                       

Insurance Expense 335,765                           183,328                          

Packing Expenses 331,831                           376,960                          

Repair & Maintenance Expenses 511,441                           90,100                            

Security Expenses 1,207,622                        451,627                          

Office Expenses 12,397                             46,439                            

Printing & Stationery 15,900                             -                                 

Commission Expenses 27,500                             1,500,000                       

Sub-total (b) 6,490,789                        11,197,876                     

Total Expenses(a+b) 6,490,789                        14,612,978                     
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Note No.30

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Exceptional Items

Prior Period item -                                   (954,846)                         

Excess remuneration refunded -                                   (218,600)                         

Interest on TDS 18,656                             6,402                              

Interest on Income Tax 475,113                           214,856                          

Total 493,769                           (952,188)                         
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COMPANY OVERVIEW 

Continental Seeds And Chemicals Limited (hereinafter refers to “The Company”) is a company 

limited by shares, having CIN L01111DL1983PLC015969 was incorporated in June 1983. The 

Company is basically engaged in the sale, purchase and cultivate of wheat, paddy, cereals, 

mentha oil and seeds of all kind. Equity shares of the company are listed and admitted on 

exchange on the SME Platform of NSE (‘NSE EMERGE’) w.e.f 03.04.2018. 

NOTE NO.1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021: 
 

1.1(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

These financial statements are prepared inaccordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(IndAS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 

instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 

(`Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accounting policy has been consistently applied except 

where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted. 

   (b) Use of Estimates  

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, management is required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets 

and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets & liabilities as at the date of financial 

statements and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. The estimates 

and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's 

evaluation of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statement. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Any revision to such estimates is recognised in the period the same is 

determined. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each 

reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future 

periods. 
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Provisions and contingent liabilities 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past 

event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 

obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at 

each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent assets are 

neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

 

1.2 Valuation of Inventories 

(i)   Inventory 

Inventory is measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  

Cost of inventory consumed is arrived at using the FIRST IN FIRST OUT (FIFO) method. 

The cost comprises the cost of obtaining the raw material after net of refundable duty (if 

any), but inclusive of freight and other direct expenses incurred to bringing such raw 

material to the place of processing or present location. 

(ii) Finished Goods 

Finished Goods are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  

Finished goods are valued on the full absorption cost basis and the cost comprises the cost 

of raw material consumed, Direct Expenses and appropriate overhead expenses incurred 

in bringing such finished goods to their present condition. 

1.3 Cash Flow Statements 

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 

future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated 

with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and 

financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

1.4  Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods 

have been passed to the buyer and seller retains no effective control of goods transferred 

and also no significant uncertainty exist regarding consideration amount & its ultimate 
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collection. Revenue from operation includes sale of services, service tax and sales during 

trial run period adjusted for discounts (net) and gain/ loss on corresponding hedge 

contracts. 

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a 

similar nature and value, the exchange is not regarded as a transaction which generates 

revenue. 

i. Other Income 

 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head 

“other income” in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Fixed Assets are stated at their original cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the acquisition price, Taxes, Duties, Freight, 

insurance and any other incidental costs of bringing the assets to their working condition 

for their intended use. In respect of projects involving construction, related pre-

operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized.   

Costs/expenses incurred on or in relation to Tangible & Intangible Assets, which are not 

put to use or are not ready for their intended use or which are under construction are 

classified under Capital Work-in-Progress & Intangible assets under development. 

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only 

if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 

standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-

day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the 

statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

          
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on ‘Straight Line Method’ 

based on useful life as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. The 

residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’residual 



Continental Seeds And Chemicals Limited F.Y.2020-21 
 

CIN : L01111DL1983PLC015969 

values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 

reporting period. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 

Building       60 years 

Plant and Machinery      15 years 

Office Equipment        5 years 

Computer Equipment        3 years 

Furniture and Fixture      10 years 

Vehicles                  8-10 years 

 

Derecognition 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or 

when no future benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are 

determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss 

within other gains/(losses). 

1.6   Leases 

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The 

Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, 

or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 

to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether : (i) the contract 

involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic 

benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the 

right to direct the use of the asset.  

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset 

and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except c and 

low value leases. For these short‑term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease 

payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain 

lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain 

that they will be exercised. 

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
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lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the 

commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 

the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present 

value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 

implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 

country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding 

adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will 

exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 

payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

 

1.7  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement: 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair 

value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at 

transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition nor issue of 

financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added 

to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are 

accounted for at trade date. 

 
(i) Subsequent measurement 
 
a. Non-derivative financial instruments 
 
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model 

whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
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A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if 

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its 

investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair 

value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. Further, in cases where the 

Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments 

which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized 

in other comprehensive income. 

 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair 

valued through profit or loss. 

 

(iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is 

subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables 

maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 

value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

 

a. Share capital 

Ordinary Shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of 

new ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 

effects. 

  

1.8 Derecognition of financial instruments 

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 

derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
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derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged or cancelled or expires. 

  

1.9 Fair value of financial instruments 
 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of 

methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each 

reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, 

available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in 

general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. 

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and 

which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 

maturity of these instruments. 

  

1.10 Impairment 

 
a. Financial assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 

financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade 

receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime 

ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 

12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition 

in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or 

reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 

required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. 

 

b. Non-financial assets 

(i) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value 

less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset 
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does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such 

cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the 

estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of 

profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 

amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, 

provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been 

recognized for the asset in prior years. 

 

1.11 Employee Benefits 

    The company has various schemes of retirement benefits such as Gratuity, leave      

encashment.  

(i) Short Term :-  Short term employee benefits are recognized in the year during which the 

services have been rendered. 

(ii) Long Term :- 

Leave Encashment –The Company has provided for the liability at year end on account of 

accumulated earned leave as per policy of the company. 

Gratutiy – The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the 

Gratuity Plan’), covering eleigible employees. Gratuity liability is determined by the 

management. 

 

1.12 Earning Per Share 

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per 

share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of 

equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted 

average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares.  
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The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the 

shares been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of the 

outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the 

beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are 

determined independently for each period presented. 

 

1.13   Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is 

recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it 

relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 

comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at 

the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax 

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 

date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary 

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 

will be realized. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to 

apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to 

be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets 

and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the 

enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to 

the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are 

not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is 

expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the 

foreseeable future. The company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, 

where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it 

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
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simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the 

best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial 

year. Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share options in excess of 

compensation charged to income are credited to share premium.  

 
1.14    Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

a. Provisions: 

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past 

events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, 

in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their 

present value and are recognized based on best estimates required to settle the obligation 

at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

reflect the current best efforts. 

 

b. Contingent Liability 

Contingent liability is disclosed for 

(i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within 

the control of the company or  

(ii) Present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of 

the obligation cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in 

the recognition of income that may never be realized. 
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Note 2: ADDITIONAL NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 
LOSS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021: 
 

2.1 Note 3 to 30 are annexed to and form integral part of balance sheet, statement of profit & 
loss & cash flow statement.  

 
2.2 Previous year figures have been regrouped, reclassified and rearranged wherever 

necessary to make them comparable with the current year figures. 
 

2.3 As explained by the management, physical verification of inventories has been 
conducted at regular intervals and no material discrepancies were observed. 

 
2.4 In the opinion of the management current assets, loans and advances have a value on 

realization in the ordinary course of business; however the balances of sundry 
debtors, creditors and loans & advances are subject to confirmation & adjustements, if 
any, required upon such confirmations are not ascertainable and hence not provided 
for. 
Certain balances of Sundry debtors to Rs. 10,64,57,382/- were outstanding as on 
31/03/2021. The confirmations from the parties to whom these amount to be received 
has not been made available. Out of such debtors, provision for doubtful debts should 
be recognized in respect of debtors, outstanding for a period of three years or more 
where no movement has taken place and no confirmations are available. Adjustments 
if any are not ascertainable and will be provided on identification of such parties 

 
 

2.5  Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 
2006-  

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year 

33,86,988 24,61,737 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 4,32,000 Nil 

Interest due on above 32,788 2,23,021 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year 

Nil Nil 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. 

Nil 2,23,021 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of each accounting year 

29,54,988 2,23,021 



Continental Seeds And Chemicals Limited F.Y.2020-21 
 

CIN : L01111DL1983PLC015969 

 
 

2.6 Leases  

The Company took lease property under an operating lease arrangement having lease term for 5 
Years with the lock-in-period of 3 years. The lease has been terminated during the year and 
resulted in termination gain of Rs.6,74,982/-.  
Company has taken the premise for a monthly rent of Rs.60,000 for 11 month. For these 
short‑term leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease..  
The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as 
follows:          
 

           (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Category of ROU Assets 

Building 

Balance as at April 1, 2020 1,28,05,093 

Reclassified on adoption of Ind AS 116 (Refer to note 1.6) - 

Addition 1,23,21,543 

(Deletion) (48,07,165) 

Depreciation (33,11,827) 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,70,07,644 

 
The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and 
amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 

Current lease liabilities   43,22,447 

Non-current lease liabilities 1,33,00,815 

Total 1,76,23,262 

 
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows : 

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 

Balance at the beginning 1,36,87,132 

Addition 1,23,21,544 

Deletion (54,82,146) 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 

19,88,158 Nil 
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Finance cost accrued during the year 16,25,558 

Payment of lease liabilities (45,28,826) 

Balance at the end 1,76,23,262 

 
The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an 
undiscounted basis are as follows: 

 31st March, 2021 

Due within one year   63,60,000 

Due in a period between one year and five years 1,69,00,000 

Total 2,32,60,000 

 
 

2.7      Repayment schedule of Non Current Long-Term Borrowings 
 
                                      (Amount in Rs.) 

Year Business Loan Term Loan 

2021-2022 Nil 55,89,194 

2022-2023 Nil 56,19,271 

2023-2024 Nil 61,56,677 

2024-2025 Nil 51,34,319 

2025-2026 Nil 23,93,686 

 
2.8      Auditors’ remuneration  

                                           (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Year ended on  

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Statutory Audit   2,00,000 2,00,000 

Tax Audit 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Total 3,00,000 3,00,000 

  
2.8 Revenue Recognition 

                 (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Year ended on  

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Revenue Generating Transactions 76,79,86,974 65,52,74,227 

Non Revenue Generating Transactions 15,75,58,553 22,38,76,396 

Total 92,55,45,527 87,91,50,623 

   
2.9  Financial Instruments by Category 
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                 (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Year ended on  

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Trade Receivables 10,64,57,382 4,47,67,106 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,13,769 42,64,167 

Other Financial Assets-Non Current 7,47,610 11,15,316 

Trade Payables 5,35,64,261 2,89,31,161 

Non- Current Borrowings 2,26,34,753 36,54,861 

 Borrowings  3,02,98,209 2,93,25,080 

Other Financial Liabilities 1,00,61,622 42,93,436 

 
 

2.10  Related Party Transactions 
A. List of Related Parties & Relationships   

S. No Particulars Status Relationship 

1 Praveen Aroma Pvt Ltd Company Enterprises where 
KMP having 
significant influence 

2 Natural Herbals & Seeds Partnership Concern Enterprises where 
KMP having 
significant influence 

3 Shree Balaji Enterprises Proprietorship Enterprises where 
Wife of Director is a 
Guarantor. 

4 Shri Praveen Rastogi Managing Director Key Management 
Person 

5 Smt Jaishree Rastogi* Executive Director Key Management 
Person 

6 Shri Sachin Rastogi Non Executive 
Director 

Key Management 
Person 

7 G.K Sharma Non Executive 
Director 

Key Management 
Person 

8 Prashant Rastogi Non Executive 
Director 

Key Management 
Person 

9 Vikas Chand Tyagi Director Key Management 
Person 

10 Nidhi Gupta Director Key Management 
Person 

11 Utpal Tandon Chief Financial Officer Key Management 
Person 

12 Megha Jain Company Secretary Key Management 
Person 
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*Smt. Jai Shree Rastogi, Executive director of the company ceased to be Director w.e.f 30th April, 
2021 due to her death.  
 

B.  Transactions  
       (Amount in Rs.)  

                                                                                                                            
Transactions 

Enterprises where KMP having 
significant influence Key Management Persons 

Remuneration 
Nil 

(Nil) 
Nil 

(Nil) 
(23,76,000) 
(10,04,400) 

Rent Paid 
Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

(Nil) 
(60,000) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

 
Praveen Aroma 
Pvt Ltd 

12,00,000 
(3,00,000) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Rent Received 
Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

1,20,000 
(1,20,000) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

 
Shree Balaji 
Enterprises 

24,000 
(Nil) 

 

Loan Received 
Nil 

(Nil) 
Nil 

(Nil) 
Praveen Rastogi 

17,30,800 
(Nil) 

Loan Repaid 
Nil 

(Nil) 
Nil 

(Nil) 
Praveen Rastogi 

Nil 
(1,00,000) 

Purchases 

Shree Balaji 
Enterprises 

5,37,00,047 
(Nil) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Praveen Aroma 
Pvt Ltd 

7,08,94,800 
(8,46,78,840) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

1,19,96,478 
(17,59,20,414) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Sale 

Shree Balaji 
Enterprises 

8,48,37,150 
(33,06,34,774) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

2,18,87,155 
(19,89,51,896) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Praveen Aroma 
Pvt Ltd 

1,58,89,503 
(7,35,63,350) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Transfer of Plant & 
Machinery from 

Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

Nil 
(18,97,010) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

 
Praveen Aroma 
Pvt Ltd 

63,79,950 
(Nil) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Purchase of Capital Asset 
Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

70,00,000 
(Nil) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Balance outstanding as at 
year end in the form of 
Trade Payables 

Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

Nil 
(17,65,137) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Shree Balaji 
Enterprises 

    42,93,514 
(1,58,29,639) 

Nil 
(Nil) 

Guarantee Given 
Natural Herbals 
& Seeds 

10.6 Crores 
 (21.00 Crores) 

Nil 
(Nil) 
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2.11  During the F.Y. 2019-20 company has not provided any liability for employee benefits in              
terms of leave enchasment.  

 
2.12 Details of sale and purchase of goods  

 
Finished Goods/Traded Goods (Net of Return) 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Purchases Sales 

Cereals & Pulses 
10,33,69,327  

(Nil) 
10,34,94,117 

(Nil) 

Basmati Rice 
19,66,16,688 
(54,05,54860) 

19,76,39,856  
(54,85,77,980) 

D.M.O. & Menthol 
18,55,46,900 

(16,20,94,450) 
48,57,10,130  

(14,95,77,740) 

Mentha Oil 
34,08,88,950 

(13,12,71,411) 
9,56,60,100  

(14,03,32,650) 

Wheat Certified Seeds 
Nil 

 (1,39,62,312) 
Nil 

 (1,80,28,260) 

Sugar 
Nil 

(13,28,100) 
Nil 

(13,37,688) 

Cattle Fees and others 
5,57,55,946 

(1,16,93,522) 
4,30,41,325 

 (1,27,19,505) 

Total 
88,21,77,811 

(86,09,04,656) 
92,55,45,528  

(87,05,73,823) 

 
 
2.13 Earning per Share (EPS) 

(Amount in Rs.) 

S. No Particulars As on 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

1 Profit after tax attributable to         
Ordinary Shareholders 
(Amount in Rs.)                             

37,49,301 64,82,082 

2 Weighted Average                         
No. of Equity Shares 
Outstanding during the year              

1,00,02,808 64,82,694 

3 Nominal value of Ordinary 
Shares (Rs.) 

10 10 

4 Basic/Diluted Earning per Share 
(Rs.) 

0.37 1.00 

 
2.14       Tax Expenses 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 

As on 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 
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Current Tax 
Income Taxes 
 
Deferred Taxes Liability/(Assets)  
 

 
14,02,642 

 
            2,83,798 

 
21,63,385 

 
(38,780) 

   
Components of Deferred tax are as under 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 

As on 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Defferred Tax Asset recognized for timing 
difference due to: 

  

Differnce Between Depreciation under Income 
Tax Act & Companies Act 

(2,96,584) 
 

(1,65,945) 
 

Employee related  (-) (-) 

Expenses on which TDS not deducted (1,49,341) (26,290) 

Deferred Tax Liability recognised for timing 
difference due to: 

  

Employee related  34,444 25,722 

Expenses Under Income Tax Act (Sec 35D) 1,27,684 1,27,684 

Net Deferred Liabilities Nil Nil 

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (2,83,798) (38,779) 

 
 

2.14 Global Health Pandemic from COVID-19 

The World Health Organization declared a global pandemic of the Novel Coronavirus disease 

(COVID-19) on February 11, 2020. In enforcing social distancing to contain the spread of the 

disease, Company offices and factory and warehouses etc. have  been operating with minimal or 

no staff for extended periods of time. To effectively respond to and manage our operations 

through this crisis, the Company triggered its business continuity management program, 

chaired by the Managing Director. In keeping with its employee-safetyfirst approach, the 

Company quickly instituted measures to trace all employees and be assured of their well-being. 

Our teams reacted with speed and efficiency, and quickly leveraged technology to shift the 

workforce to an entirely new ‘work-from-home’ model. The Company would implement a 

phased and safe return-to-work plan as and when lockdown restrictions are relaxed. The 

Company’s focus on liquidity, supported by a strong balance sheet and acceleration in cost 
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optimization initiatives, would help in navigating any near-term challenges in the demand 

environment. 

2.16   Contingent Liabilties 

Bank Guarantee 

The Company is in the violation of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 as it has provided 

corporate guarantee along with property to Canara Bank on behalf of Natural Herbal & Seeds to 

the tune of Rs.10.60 Crore to obtain the credit facilities by the sister concern.  

In addition to the guarantee, company has provided two properties registered in its name as 

collateral security to the Canara bank on behalf of Natural Herbal & Seeds. 

2.17   Acceptance of Deposit 

The Company is in violation of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 

Companies (Accepatnces of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as it has taken advances from customers 

amounting to Rs. 60.50 lacs having outstanding balances of more than 365 days. In terms of Rule 

2(1) (xii)(a) such advances are liable to be treated as deposits reads together with section 73 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 hence the Company is in violation of same. 

2.18  During the year the Company Purchased Land amounting to Rs.47,25,100/- which amount 

was shown paid through cheques in sales deed. However out of which cheques of Rs. 35.00 lacs 

were not presented by the previous owner.  

 

 

As per our report of even date  

For PMAS & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Regn. No.:024726N/N500068 
 

 
Sd/-                                                                 Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 
CA. Neha Jawa                 Praveen Rastogi                         Sachin Rastogi                
Partner                 Director                             Director 
M.No.529237                 DIN: 01414608                             DIN: 05134858 
New Delhi: 30.06.2021 
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ANNEXURE I 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) 

submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results - (Standalone and Consolidated 

separately) 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 
[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016] 

   Audited Figures Adjusted Figures 
I. Sl. 

No. Particula
rs 

(as reported 
before adjusting 

(audited figures 
after 

adjusting for 
   for qualifications) qualifications) 

 1. Turnover / Total income 95,70,41,675 95,70,41,675 

 2. Total Expenditure 95,21,73,529 95,21,73,529 
 3. Net Profit/(Loss) 37,49,301 37,49,301 
 4. Earnings Per Share 0.37 0.37 
 5. Total Assets 33,42,55,328 33,42,55,328 
 6. Total Liabilities 21,39,31,491  21,39,31,491  
 7. Net Worth 12,03,23,837 12,03,23,837 

  Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate 
by the 

  

 8. management) - - 

 
II. 

 
Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

  

A Details of Audit Qualification:  
i) Balance under Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors, loans and advances given by the Company and parties 
from whom unsecured loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any, required 
upon such confirmations are not ascertainable and hence not provided for.  
ii) Certain balances of Sundry debtors to Rs. 10,64,57,382/- were outstanding as on 31/03/2021. The 
confirmations from the parties to whom these amount to be received have not been made available. Out of 
such debtors, provision for doubtful debts should be recognized in respect of debtors, outstanding for a 
period of three years or more where no movement has taken place and no confirmations are available. 
Adjustments if any are not ascertainable and will be provided on identification of such parties. 

b. Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion  

c. Frequency of qualification: Second  time.  

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views: Not   
Quantified by the auditor. 

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 
 (i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: The company has succeeded in 

recovering some amount from the debtors and  is trying to make rest of  the recoveries at the 
earliest .                  

mailto:info@continentalseeds.co.in
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 (ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not applicable 
 

(iii) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above:  In our opinion a 
provision of those debtors which are 3 years or old should be made, 
however the Management is of the opinion that the recovery would 
be made in the FY 2020-21 hence no need to quantify the bad debts 
amount. In lack of any documentary evidence we are unable to 
quantify the provision amount.  

  

 
III. 

 
Signatories: 

  

 
1. Mr. Praveen Rastogi (Chairman and Managing Director)   

 

Sd/-  

 2. Mr. Utpal Tandon (Chief Financial Officer)                    

 

Sd/-  

 3. Mr. Prashant Rastogi (Audit Committee Chairman)            

 

Sd/-  

 4. PMAS & Associates LLP (Statutory Auditor)                                   Sd/-              -  
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ATTENDANCE SLIP  

Please fill Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue.  

DP-Id*  Folio No.  

 

 

Client-Id*  No. of shares  
 

 

 

Name and address of the Shareholder  

 

Name and address of the Proxy holder   

 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, 

30
th

 September, 2021 at 04:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the company at Fourth Floor, C-67, DDA Sheds, 

Okhla Phase-1 New Delhi -110020 

 

 ______________________  

                                                                                                                                                      

Signature of Shareholder 

 

____________________  

                                                                                                                                             

Signature of Proxyholder 

 

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 
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PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration), Rules, 2014]  

Name of the Member’s: 

Registered Address: 

 

Email-Id: 

Folio No.: 

DP-ID/Client-ID*: 

*Applicable for shareholders holding shares in electronic form.  

I/We, being the member(s) holding _____________________________ shares of Continental Seeds and 

Chemical Limited, of Re. 10/- each hereby appoint 

(1)Name:_____________________________of_____________________________________________________

_____________________________________________having e-mail id____________________________or 

failing him  

(2)Name:_____________________________of_____________________________________________________

_____________________________________________having e-mail id____________________________or 

failing him  

(3)Name:_____________________________of_____________________________________________________

_____________________________________________having e-mail id____________________________or 

failing him  

and whose signature(s) are appended in Proxy Form as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 30
th

 

September, 2021 at 04:00 P.M. at Fourth Floor, C-67, DDA Sheds, Okhla Phase-1 New Delhi -110020 and at 

any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated overleaf: 

I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the Box below: 

S.No. Resolutions For Against 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the reports 

of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and 

  

2. Re-Appointment of Mr. Pravin Rastogi (DIN: 01414608), who 
retires by rotation. 

  

 

Signed this………….….day of………………….2021 

                                                                                                                                                                   

______________________  

                                                                                                                                       Signature of Shareholder 
                                                                                                                                        

       

_______________________               _______________________                   _________________________ 
Signature of first Proxy holder            Signature of second Proxy holder             Signature of third Proxy holder 
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NOTES:  

 

1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.  
2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.  

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 

person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.  

*4. This is only optional. Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolution indicated in the Box. 
If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to 

vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.  

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.  

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all joint holders 
should be stated 
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